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1. Opening

1.1 Declaration of Opening

The President declared the meeting open at 5pm.

1.2 Recording of those Present

Cr K J Chappel  President
Cr D B Collins
Cr J M Coaker
Cr D S Agar
Cr K Stokes

Mr C Linnell Chief Executive Officer
Ms S Appleton Executive Manager Development & Administration
Ms E Cuthbert Economic Development Manager
Mrs C Murphy Senior Finance Manager
Mrs S Adams Executive Assistant to CEO

1.3 Recording of Apologies

Apologies were received from Cr D S Carslake

1.4 Recording Leave of Absence Previously Approved

Nil

1.5 Announcements by President without Discussion

Nil

1.6 Visitors to Meeting

Nil

2. Public Question Time and Deputations

Nil

3. Declarations of Interest

Nil
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   4. Confirmation of Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 

4.1 8 November 2016 – Audit Committee Meeting 
4.2 16 March 2017 – Audit Committee Meeting 
 
COUNCIL RESOLUTION 

 
 180201  Moved:  Cr Collins 
   Seconded:  Cr Coaker 
 
That the minutes of the following meeting be confirmed: 

 
4.1  8 November 2016 – Audit Committee Meeting 
4.2 16 March 2017 – Audit Committee Meeting 

 
CARRIED 4/0 

 
 5. Items for discussion 
   
  Samantha Appleton left the room at 5.05pm and returned at 5.07pm. 
 
  Chris Linnell left the room at 5.08pm and returned at 5.11pm. 
 

 Travis Bates of RSM joined the meeting via teleconference between 5.12pm and 
5.30pm. 

 
  Cr Stokes entered the room at 5.18pm. 
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SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is for Council to adopt the 2016/17 Annual Financial Report, the
Auditor’s Report and Management Report for the Shire of Morawa for the year ended 30
June 2017.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST

Nil

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 – 5.1a 2016/17 Annual Financial Report and Audit Report
Attachment 2 – 5.1b Letter to the CEO advising of the Audit Findings for the year ended 30

June 2016

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

It is a statutory requirement that all Local Governments conduct an independent audit of
the accounts and financial statements of the entity at the completion of each financial year.
The Morawa Shire Council Audit Committee must then consider this report and provide
endorsement to the actions and strategies as determined by Staff in response to the
report.

Item No/ Subject: 5.1 Acceptance of Annual Financial Statements and Audit
Reports

Date of Meeting: 15 February 2018

Date & Author: 30 January 2018 – Samantha Appleton

Responsible Officer: Samantha Appleton – Executive Manager Development &
Administration

Applicant/Proponent: Fred Gledhill – Executive Manager Corporate & Community
Services

  File Number: FM.FRP.1

Previous minute/s & Audit Committee Meeting – 8 November 2016 
Reference:  
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OFFICER’S COMMENT 
 
The 2016/17 Audit revealed that there were reportable matters identified. 
 
 The Auditors did identify issues that warranted action in regards to: 
 

1. Non-compliance with purchasing policy. 
2. Identification and valuation of fixed assets. 
3. Ratio Analysis. 
4. Credit Card Purchases. 
5. High annual leave accrual at year end. 

 
The findings identified during the Audit are detailed in Annexure A of correspondence 
addressed to the Chief Executive Officer with Management Comments to the Auditors 
findings. 
 
COMMUNITY CONSULTATION 
 
Nil 
 
COUNCILLOR CONSULTATION 
 
Nil 
 
STATUTORY ENVIRONMENT 
 
Local Government Act 1995 
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Nil 
 
STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS 
 
Shire of Morawa Strategic Community Plan 
  4.3  A local government that is respected, professional and accountable. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Establishment of appropriate internal controls and procedures minimises the risk of 
oversight and loss to the Shire of Morawa. 
 
VOTING REQUIREMENTS 
 
Simple Majority  
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OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Audit Committee: 
 

1. Adopts the Shire of Morawa 2016/17 Annual Financial Statements; 
 

2. Receives the Auditor’s Report and Management Report for the year ended 30 June 
2017; and 
 

3. Endorses the actions and strategies as determined by Shire staff in response to the 
report. 

 
 

COUNCIL RESOLUTION 
 
 180202  Moved:  Cr Stokes 
    Seconded:  Cr Collins 
 
It is recommended that the Audit Committee: 
 

1. Adopts the Shire of Morawa 2016/17 Annual Financial Statements; 
 

2. Receives the Auditor’s Report and Management Report for the year ended 30 
June 2017; and 
 

3. Endorses the actions and strategies as determined by Shire staff in response 
to the report. 

 
CARRIED 5/0 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Statement by Chief Executive Officer 2

Statement of Comprehensive Income by Nature or Type 3

Statement of Comprehensive Income by Program 4

Statement of Financial Position 5

Statement of Changes in Equity 6

Statement of Cash Flows 7

Rate Setting Statement 8

Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Report 9

Independent Audit Report 66

Supplementary Ratio Information 68

Principal place of business:
26 Winfield Street

Morawa WA 6623

SHIRE OF MORAWA

5.1a 2016/17 Annual Financial Report and Audit Report

Minutes - ACM 15 February 2018 6



Minutes - ACM 15 February 2018 7



SHIRE OF MORAWA

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BY NATURE OR TYPE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

NOTE 2017 2017 2016

$ Budget $

$

Revenue

Rates 22 1,664,137 1,654,224 1,450,696

Operating grants, subsidies and contributions 29 6,026,656 1,914,295 2,243,040

Fees and charges 28 762,018 866,464 735,323

Interest earnings 2(a) 172,463 237,500 171,813

Other revenue 2(a) 153,973 130,737 202,664

8,779,247 4,803,220 4,803,536

Expenses

Employee costs (1,582,206) (1,664,521) (1,965,357)

Materials and contracts (4,373,167) (1,571,884) (2,302,155)

Utility charges (503,598) (341,848) (292,392)

Depreciation on non-current assets 2(a) (1,470,054) (1,683,278) (1,501,236)

Interest expenses 2(a) (22,752) (22,704) (20,945)

Insurance expenses (200,120) (178,523) (214,099)

Other expenditure (126,586) (169,465) (142,062)

(8,278,483) (5,632,223) (6,438,246)

500,764 (829,003) (1,634,710)

Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions 29 2,265,831 3,738,832 1,291,028

Profit on asset disposals 20 1,112 1,990 0

(Loss) on asset disposals 20 (42,551) (20,249) (74,790)
Reversal of prior year loss on revaluation of Infrastructure - 

Parks and Ovals 7(b) 18,667 0 0

Net result 2,743,823 2,891,570 (418,472)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Changes on revaluation of non-current assets 12 (4,316,578) 0 (1,654)

Total other comprehensive income (4,316,578) 0 (1,654)

Total comprehensive income (1,572,755) 2,891,570 (420,126)

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BY PROGRAM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

NOTE 2017 2017 2016

$ Budget $

$

Revenue

Governance 40 10 379

General purpose funding 4,202,542 3,437,377 2,375,239

Law, order, public safety 25,098 44,720 47,692

Health 3,328 8,000 59,064

Education and welfare 22,333 45,500 17,905

Housing 83,297 137,711 46,856

Community amenities 435,500 461,431 538,402

Recreation and culture 47,087 96,031 55,653

Transport 3,665,610 264,109 1,358,121

Economic services 156,933 185,099 210,929

Other property and services 137,479 123,232 93,296

8,779,247 4,803,220 4,803,536

Expenses

Governance (449,851) (485,346) (453,942)

General purpose funding (196,911) (198,855) (193,155)

Law, order, public safety (129,794) (147,658) (147,445)

Health (155,117) (154,150) (260,507)

Education and welfare (176,028) (299,878) (285,792)

Housing (130,093) (156,049) (100,213)

Community amenities (585,147) (616,433) (482,500)

Recreation and culture (1,164,883) (1,143,712) (1,107,713)

Transport (4,808,643) (1,751,425) (2,808,160)

Economic services (415,210) (628,406) (538,733)

Other property and services (44,054) (27,607) (39,141)

(8,255,731) (5,609,519) (6,417,301)

Finance costs 2(a) 

Housing (22,752) (22,704) (20,945)

(22,752) (22,704) (20,945)

500,764 (829,003) (1,634,710)
Non-operating grants, subsidies and  

 contributions 29 2,265,831 3,738,832 1,291,028

Profit on disposal of assets 20 1,112 1,990 0

(Loss) on disposal of assets 20 (42,551) (20,249) (74,790)
Reversal of prior year loss on revaluation of Infrastructure - 

Parks and Ovals 7(b) 18,667 0 0

Net result 2,743,823 2,891,570 (418,472)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes on revaluation of non-current assets 12 (4,316,578) 0 (1,654)

Total other comprehensive income (4,316,578) 0 (1,654)

Total comprehensive income (1,572,755) 2,891,570 (420,126)

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30TH JUNE 2017

NOTE 2017 2016

$ $

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 3 7,138,224 6,412,609

Trade and other receivables 4 685,729 1,392,544

Inventories 5 1,118 1,335

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 7,825,071 7,806,488

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Other receivables 4 16,559 13,935

Property, plant and equipment 6 23,105,106 26,518,884

Infrastructure 7 44,071,710 42,483,353

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 67,193,375 69,016,172

TOTAL ASSETS 75,018,446 76,822,660

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 8 165,459 358,161

Current portion of long term borrowings 9 70,815 66,743

Provisions 10 384,662 345,401

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 620,936 770,305

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term borrowings 9 381,781 452,596

Provisions 10 26,386 37,661

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 408,167 490,257

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,029,103 1,260,562

NET ASSETS 73,989,343 75,562,098

EQUITY

Retained surplus 34,337,219 32,282,013

Reserves - cash backed 11 6,997,139 6,308,522

Revaluation surplus 12 32,654,985 36,971,563

TOTAL EQUITY 73,989,343 75,562,098

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

RESERVES

RETAINED CASH REVALUATION TOTAL

NOTE SURPLUS BACKED SURPLUS EQUITY

$ $ $ $

Balance as at 1 July 2015 32,181,061 6,827,946 36,973,217 75,982,224

Comprehensive income

  Net result (418,472) 0 0 (418,472)

  Changes on revaluation of assets 12 0 0 (1,654) (1,654)

Total comprehensive income (418,472) 0 (1,654) (420,126)

Transfers from/(to) reserves 519,424 (519,424) 0 0

Balance as at 30 June 2016 32,282,013 6,308,522 36,971,563 75,562,098

Comprehensive income

  Net result 2,743,823 0 0 2,743,823

  Changes on revaluation of assets 12 0 0 (4,316,578) (4,316,578)

Total comprehensive income 2,743,823 0 (4,316,578) (1,572,755)

Transfers from/(to) reserves (688,617) 688,617 0 0

Balance as at 30 June 2017 34,337,219 6,997,139 32,654,985 73,989,343

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

NOTE 2017 2017 2016

Actual Budget Actual

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ $ $

Receipts

Rates 1,548,484 1,804,224 1,316,278

Operating grants, subsidies and contributions 6,824,109 2,634,295 1,631,293

Fees and charges 806,021 866,464 720,825

Interest earnings 172,463 237,500 177,037

Goods and services tax 776,355 502,055 371,974

Other revenue 143,394 130,737 206,410

10,270,826 6,175,275 4,423,817

Payments

Employee costs (1,582,062) (1,625,407) (1,931,790)

Materials and contracts (4,536,450) (1,366,829) (2,137,801)

Utility charges (503,598) (341,848) (292,392)

Interest expenses (24,112) (22,704) (21,812)

Insurance expenses (200,120) (178,523) (214,099)

Goods and services tax (787,388) (500,000) (364,464)

Other expenditure (126,586) (169,465) (142,062)

(7,760,316) (4,204,776) (5,104,420)

Net cash provided by (used in)

 operating activities 13(b) 2,510,510 1,970,499 (680,603)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for purchase of 

  property, plant & equipment * (1,321,521) (1,259,304) (570,399)

Payments for construction of

  infrastructure (2,700,965) (5,443,746) (1,851,430)

Non-operating grants,

 subsidies and contributions * 2,172,061 3,738,832 1,291,028

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 132,273 135,500 35,909

Net cash provided by (used in)

  investment activities (1,718,152) (2,828,718) (1,094,892)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of debentures (66,743) (68,175) (76,622)

Proceeds from new debentures 0 0 350,000

Net cash provided by (used In)

  financing activities (66,743) (68,175) 273,378

Net increase (decrease) in cash held 725,615 (926,394) (1,502,117)

Cash at beginning of year 6,412,609 6,299,087 7,914,726

Cash and cash equivalents

 at the end of the year 13(a) 7,138,224 5,372,693 6,412,609

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

* - The above figures vary from the Rate Setting Statement due to the recognition of land at fair value which

* - was transferred for nominal consideration from Landcorp.
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

RATE SETTING STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2017 2017 2016
NOTE Actual Budget Actual

$ $ $

Net current assets at start of financial year - surplus/(deficit) 1,081,056 1,088,808 1,502,728
1,081,056 1,088,808 1,502,728

Governance 40 10 379
General purpose funding 2,548,313 1,786,445 838,629
Law, order, public safety 25,098 44,720 47,692
Health 3,328 8,000 59,064
Education and welfare 22,333 45,500 17,905
Housing 83,297 137,711 46,856
Community amenities 435,500 461,431 538,402
Recreation and culture 47,087 96,031 55,653
Transport 3,666,722 265,609 1,358,121
Economic services 156,933 185,099 210,929
Other property and services 137,479 123,722 93,296

7,126,130 3,154,278 3,266,926

Governance (449,851) (485,346) (453,942)
General purpose funding (178,244) (198,855) (193,155)
Law, order, public safety (146,986) (147,658) (147,445)
Health (155,117) (154,150) (274,928)
Education and welfare (176,028) (299,878) (285,792)
Housing (152,845) (178,753) (121,158)
Community amenities (585,147) (616,433) (482,500)
Recreation and culture (1,164,883) (1,143,712) (1,155,380)
Transport (4,815,580) (1,769,563) (2,808,160)
Economic services (415,210) (628,406) (538,733)
Other property and services (62,476) (29,718) (51,843)

(8,302,367) (5,652,472) (6,513,036)
Operating activities excluded from budget
(Profit) on disposal of assets 20 (1,112) (1,990) 0
Loss on disposal of assets 20 42,551 20,249 74,790

Reversal of loss upon revaluation of non-current assets (18,667) 0 0
Movement in deferred pensioner rates (non-current) (2,624) 0 (2,871)
Movement in employee benefit provisions (non-current) (11,275) 0 6,827
Movement in LSL Reserve (Added Back) (5,515) 0 9,936
Depreciation and amortisation on assets 2(a) 1,470,054 1,683,278 1,501,236
Amount attributable to operating activities 1,378,231 292,151 (153,464)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions 2,265,831 3,738,832 1,291,028
Proceeds from disposal of assets 20 132,273 135,500 35,909
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 6(b) (1,415,291) (1,259,304) (570,399)
Purchase and construction of infrastructure 7(b) (2,700,965) (5,443,746) (1,851,430)
Amount attributable to investing activities (1,718,152) (2,828,718) (1,094,892)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of debentures 21(a) (66,743) (68,175) (76,622)
Proceeds from new debentures 21(a) 0 0 350,000
Transfers to reserves (restricted assets) 11 (1,340,804) (519,121) (618,320)
Transfers from reserves (restricted assets) 11 652,187 1,472,931 1,137,744
Amount attributable to financing activities (755,360) 885,635 792,802

Surplus(deficiency) before general rates (1,095,281) (1,650,932) (455,554)

Total amount raised from general rates 22 1,654,229 1,650,932 1,536,610

Net current assets at June 30 c/fwd - surplus/(deficit) 23 558,948 0 1,081,056

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Revenue from operating activities (excluding rates)

Expenditure from operating activities
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial report comprises general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in 

accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (as they apply to local governments and not-for-profit 

entities), Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian

Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government Act 1995 and accompanying regulations. Material 

accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of this financial report are presented

below and have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise.

Except for cash flow and rate setting information, the report has been prepared on the accrual basis  

and is based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected 

non-current assets, financial assets and liabilities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of a financial report in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires 

management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and  

reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors  

that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances; the results of which form the basis of making  

the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other  

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT REPORTING ENTITY

All Funds through which the Shire controls resources to carry on its functions have been included in the

financial statements forming part of this financial report.

In the process of reporting on the local government as a single unit, all transactions and balances 

between those Funds (for example, loans and transfers between Funds) have been eliminated.

All monies held in the Trust Fund are excluded from the financial statements. A separate statement of

those monies appears at Note 19 to these financial statements.

(a) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of 

GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST receivable or payable.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with receivables or payables  

in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or 

financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating

cash flows.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash at bank, deposits available on demand with 

banks and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of 

cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are reported as short term borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial  

position.

SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables include amounts due from ratepayers for unpaid rates and service charges 

and other amounts due from third parties for goods sold and services performed in the ordinary course 

of business.

Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified 

as current assets.  All other receivables are classified as non-current assets.

Collectability of trade and other receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be 

uncollectible are written off when identified.  An allowance for doubtful debts is raised when there is 

objective evidence that they will not be collectible.

(d) Inventories

General
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated  

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Land held for sale
Land held for development and sale is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes 

the cost of acquisition, development, borrowing costs and holding costs until completion of development.

Finance costs and holding charges incurred after development is completed are expensed.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss at the time of signing an unconditional contract of sale if  

significant risks and rewards, and effective control over the land, are passed on to the buyer at this point.

Land held for sale is classified as current except where it is held as non-current based on the Council’s

intentions to release for sale. 

(e) Fixed Assets

Each class of fixed assets within either property, plant and equipment or infrastructure, is carried at cost 

or fair value as indicated less, where applicable, any  accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Mandatory requirement to revalue non-current assets
Effective from 1 July 2012, the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations were amended and 

the measurement of non-current assets at Fair Value became mandatory.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, the Shire commenced the process of adopting Fair Value

 in accordance with the Regulations.

Whilst the amendments initially allowed for a phasing in of fair value in relation to fixed assets over three

years, as at 30 June 2015 all non-current assets were carried at Fair Value in accordance with the

the requirements.

Thereafter, each asset class must be revalued in accordance with the regulatory framework established and

Relevant disclosures, in accordance with the requirements of Australian Accounting Standards, have been 

made in the financial report as necessary.

SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

the Shire revalues its asset classes in accordance with this mandatory timetable.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Fixed Assets (Continued)

Land under control
In accordance with Local Government (Financial Management) Regulation 16(a)(ii), the Shire was required

to include as an asset (by 30 June 2013), Crown Land operated by the local government as a golf course,

showground, racecourse or other sporting or recreational facility of State or Regional significance.

Upon initial recognition, these assets were recorded at cost in accordance with AASB 116. They were 

then classified as Land and revalued along with other land in accordance with the other policies detailed 

in this Note.

Initial recognition and measurement between mandatory revaluation dates
All assets are initially recognised at cost and subsequently revalued in accordance with the mandatory 

measurement framework detailed above.  

In relation to this initial measurement, cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as 

consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal 

consideration, cost is determined as fair value at the date of acquisition. The cost of non-current assets

constructed by the Shire includes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour on the project

and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads.

Individual assets acquired between initial recognition and the next revaluation of the asset class in 

accordance with the mandatory measurement framework detailed above, are carried at cost less

accumulated depreciation as management believes this approximates fair value. They will be subject to

subsequent revaluation at the next anniversary date in accordance with the mandatory measurement 

framework detailed above.

Revaluation

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of assets are credited to a revaluation surplus in 

equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are recognised against revaluation 

surplus directly in equity. All other decreases are recognised in profit or loss.

Land under roads

In Western Australia, all land under roads is Crown Land, the responsibility for managing which, is 

vested in the local government.

Effective as at 1 July 2008, Council elected not to recognise any value for land under roads acquired 

on or before 30 June 2008.  This accords with the treatment available in Australian Accounting 

Standard AASB 1051 Land Under Roads and the fact Local Government (Financial Management) 

Regulation 16(a)(i) prohibits local governments from recognising such land as an asset.

In respect of land under roads acquired on or after 1 July 2008, as detailed above, Local Government 

(Financial Management) Regulation 16(a)(i) prohibits local governments from recognising such land

as an asset.

Whilst such treatment is inconsistent with the requirements of AASB 1051, Local Government 

(Financial Management) Regulation 4(2) provides, in the event of such an inconsistency, the Local 

Government (Financial Management) Regulations prevail.

Consequently, any land under roads acquired on or after 1 July 2008 is not included as an asset of the 

Shire.

SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Fixed Assets (Continued)

Depreciation
The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings but excluding freehold land, are depreciated  

on a straight-line basis over the individual asset’s useful life from the time the asset is held ready for use. 

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the 

estimated useful life of the improvements.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of  

the revaluation is treated in one of the following ways:

a) Restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying 

amount of the asset after revaluation equals its revalued amount; or

b) Eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued 

amount of the asset.

Major depreciation periods used for each class of depreciable asset are:

Buildings 40 to 100 years

Furniture and Equipment 5 to 10 years

Plant and Equipment   5 to 15 years

Sealed roads and streets

 clearing and earthworks not depreciated

 construction/road base 40 years

 original surfacing and

 major re-surfacing

  - bituminous seals 20 years

Gravel roads

 clearing and earthworks not depreciated

 construction/road base 40 years

 gravel sheet 12 years

Formed roads (unsealed)

 clearing and earthworks not depreciated

 construction/road base 50 years

Footpaths - slab 50 years

Drainage 50 years

Other Infrastructure 10 to 50 years

Parks and Ovals 50 years

Airfields 50 years

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each  

reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with  the carrying amount.  

These gains and losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which

they arise.  

Capitalisation threshold

- Land Nil (All Land Capitalised)

- Buildings 5,000

- Plant & Equipment 5,000

- Furniture & Equipment 5,000

- Infrastructure 5,000

SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

Expenditure under the thresholds listed below is not capitalised.  Rather, it is recorded on an asset inventory 

listing.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

When performing a revaluation, the Shire uses a mix of both independent and management valuations

using the following as a guide:

Fair Value is the price that the Shire would receive to sell the asset or would have to pay to transfer a

liability, in an orderly (i.e. unforced) transaction between independent, knowledgeable and willing market 

participants at the measurement date.

As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing information is 

used to determine fair value. Adjustments to market values may be made having regard to the 

characteristics of the specific asset or liability. The fair values of assets that are not traded in an active 

market are determined using one or more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to 

the extent possible, the use of observable market data.

To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market for the asset or

liability (i.e. the market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset or liability) or, in the 

absence of such a market,  the most advantageous market available to the entity at the end of the

reporting period (i.e. the market that maximises the receipts from the sale of the asset after taking into 

account transaction costs and transport costs).

For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a market participant’s ability 

to use the asset in its highest and best use or to sell it to another market participant that would use the 

asset in its highest and best use.

Fair value hierarchy
AASB 13 requires the disclosure of fair value information by level of the fair value hierarchy, which 

categorises fair value measurement into one of three possible levels based on the lowest level that an 

input that is significant to the measurement can be categorised into as follows:

Level 1

Measurements based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2

Measurements based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the  

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3

Measurements based on unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or 

more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of 

observable market data. If all significant inputs required to measure fair value are observable, the asset or  

liability is included in Level 2. If one or more significant inputs are not based on observable market data,  

the asset or liability is included in Level 3.

Valuation techniques
The Shire selects a valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient

data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends on   

the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation techniques selected by

the Shire are consistent with one or more of the following valuation approaches:

Market approach

Valuation techniques that use prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions for 

identical or similar assets or liabilities.

SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

13Minutes - ACM 15 February 2018 18



1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities (Continued)

Income approach

Valuation techniques that convert estimated future cash flows or income and expenses into a single 

discounted present value.

Cost approach

Valuation techniques that reflect the current replacement cost of an asset at its current service capacity. 

Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would use  

when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risks. When selecting a valuation 

technique, the Shire gives priority to those techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and 

minimise the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs that are developed using market data (such as publicly 

available information on actual transactions) and reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would

generally use when pricing the asset or liability are considered observable, whereas inputs for which 

market data is not available and therefore are developed using the best information available about such 

assumptions are considered unobservable.

As detailed above, the mandatory measurement framework imposed by the Local Government 

(Financial Management) Regulations requires, as a minimum, all assets carried at a revalued amount to  

be revalued in accordance with the regulatory framework.

(g) Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Shire becomes a party to the

contractual provisions to the instrument.  For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the 

Shire commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is

adopted).

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where the 

instrument is classified 'at fair value through profit or loss', in which case transaction costs are 

expensed to profit or loss immediately.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost using the effective 

interest rate method, or at cost.

Amortised cost is calculated as:

(a)  the amount in which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition;

(b)  less principal repayments and any reduction for impairment; and

(c)  plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of the difference, if any, between the amount

      initially recognised and the maturity amount calculated using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the relevant  

period and is equivalent to the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts  

(including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life (or when   

this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term) of the financial instrument to the net carrying 

amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Revisions to expected future net cash flows will 

necessitate an adjustment to the carrying value with a consequential recognition of an income or expense 

in profit or loss. 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 

Financial assets are classified at “fair value through profit or loss” when they are held for trading for the 

purpose of short-term profit taking. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value with changes   

in carrying amount being included in profit or loss. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

(ii) Loans and receivables  

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 

not quoted in an active market and are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains or losses are 

recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are included in current assets where they are expected to mature within 12 months  

after the end of the reporting period.  

(iii) Held-to-maturity investments 

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed maturities and fixed or 

determinable payments that the Shire has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. They

are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. 

Held-to-maturity investments are included in current assets, where they are expected to mature 

within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. All other investments are classified as non-

current.

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets 

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either not suitable to be 

classified into other categories of financial assets due to their nature, or they are designated as such 

by management. They comprise investments in the equity of other entities where there is neither a 

fixed maturity nor fixed or determinable payments.

They are subsequently measured at fair value with changes in such fair value (i.e. gains or losses) 

recognised in other comprehensive income (except for impairment losses). When the financial asset 

is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss pertaining to that asset previously recognised in other 

comprehensive income is reclassified into profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are included in current assets, where they are expected to be sold 

within 12 months after the end of the reporting period. All other available-for-sale financial assets are  

classified as non-current.

(v) Financial liabilities

Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.

SHIRE OF MORAWA
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment

A financial asset is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as

a result of one or more events (a “loss event”) having occurred, which will have an impact on the estimated 

future cash flows of the financial asset(s).

In the case of available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged decline in the market value of  

the instrument is considered a loss event. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss immediately. 

Also, any cumulative decline in fair value previously recognised in other comprehensive income is 

reclassified to profit or loss at this point.

In the case of financial assets carried at amortised cost, loss events may include: indications that the 

debtors or a group of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in  

interest or principal payments; indications that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; 

and changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (including loans and receivables), a separate allowance 

account is used to reduce the carrying amount of financial assets impaired by credit losses. After 

having taken all possible measures of recovery, if management establishes that the carrying amount 

cannot be recovered by any means, at that point the written-off amounts are charged to the allowance 

account or the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is reduced directly if no impairment amount  

was previously recognised in the allowance account.

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expire or the

asset is transferred to another party whereby the Shire no longer has any significant continual

involvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset.

Financial liabilities are derecognised where the related obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. 

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to  

another party and the fair value of the consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or 

liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

(h) Impairment of Assets

In accordance with Australian Accounting Standards the Shire's assets, other than inventories,

are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication they may be impaired.

Where such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by comparing the 

recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in 

use, to the asset's carrying amount.

Any excess of the asset's carrying amount over its recoverable amount is recognised immediately in  

profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount in accordance with another Standard 

(e.g. AASB 116) whereby any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease in  

accordance with that other Standard.

For non-cash generating assets such as roads, drains, public buildings and the like, value in use is

represented by the depreciated replacement cost of the asset.

(i) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Shire prior to the

end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when the Shire becomes obliged to make future

payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services. The amounts are unsecured, are 

recognised as a current liability and are normally paid within 30 days of recognition.

SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

16Minutes - ACM 15 February 2018 21



1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j) Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits 

Provision is made for the Shire’s obligations for short-term employee benefits. Short-term employee

benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before 

12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service,   

including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short-term employee benefits are measured at the 

(undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the obligation is settled.

The Shire’s obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and sick leave are

recognised as a part of current trade and other payables in the statement of financial position. The 

Shire’s obligations for employees’ annual leave and long service leave entitlements are recognised as

provisions in the statement of financial position.

Other long-term employee benefits

Provision is made for employees’ long service leave and annual leave entitlements not expected to be  

settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees  

render the related service. Other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the  

expected future payments to be made to employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated 

future wage and salary levels, durations of service and employee departures and are discounted at rates   

determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that 

have maturity dates that approximate the terms of the obligations. Any remeasurements for changes in 

assumptions of obligations for other long-term employee benefits are recognised in profit or loss in the 

periods in which the changes occur.

The Shire’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current provisions in its 

statement of financial position, except where the Shire does not have an unconditional right to defer 

settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period, in which case the obligations are 

presented as current provisions.

(k) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense when incurred except where they are directly attributable 

to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset.  Where this is the case, they are 

capitalised as part of the cost of the particular asset until such time as the asset is substantially ready 

for its intended use or sale.

(l) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Shire has a present legal or constructive obligation, as a result of 

past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can 

be reliably measured.

Provisions are measured using the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the  

end of the reporting period.

(m) Leases

Leases of fixed assets where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the 

asset, but not legal ownership, are transferred to the Shire, are classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalised recording an asset and a liability at the lower amounts equal to the fair 

value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any

guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability

and the lease interest expense for the period.

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or 

the lease term.

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the

lessor, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight line

basis over the life of the lease term.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Investment in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Shire has significant influence. Significant influence is the 

power to participate in the financial operating policy decisions of that entity but is not control or joint 

control of those policies. Investments in associates are accounted for in the financial statements by 

applying the equity method of accounting, whereby the investment is initially recognised at cost and  

adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Shire’s share of net assets of the associate.

In addition, the Shire’s share of the profit or loss of the associate is included in the Shire’s profit or loss.

The carrying amount of the investment includes, where applicable, goodwill relating to the associate. 

Any discount on acquisition, whereby the Shire’s share of the net fair value of the associate exceeds

the cost of investment, is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired. 

Profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Shire and the associate are eliminated to

the extent of the Shire’s interest in the associate.

When the Shire’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the

Shire discontinues recognising its share of further losses unless it has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. When the associate subsequently makes  

profits, the Shire will resume recognising its share of those profits once its share of the profits equals

the share of the losses not recognised.

(o) Interests in Joint Arrangements

Joint arrangements represent the contractual sharing of control between parties in a business 

venture where unanimous decisions about relevant activities are required.

Separate joint venture entities providing joint venturers with an interest to net assets are classified as a 

joint venture and accounted for using the equity method. Refer to note 1(n) for a description of the equity  

method of accounting.

Joint venture operations represent arrangements whereby joint operators maintain direct interests in  

each asset and exposure to each liability of the arrangement. The Shire’s interests in the assets,

liabilities, revenue and expenses of joint operations are included in the respective line items of the financial 

statements. Information about the joint ventures is set out in Note 16.

(p) Rates, Grants, Donations and Other Contributions

Rates, grants, donations and other contributions are recognised as revenues when the local government 

obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions.

Control over assets acquired from rates is obtained at the commencement of the rating period or, where 

earlier, upon receipt of the rates.

Control of non-operating grants arises when the Shire can benefit from funds transferred to it and deny

or regulate the access of others to those benefits. Therefore, control arises when the Shire can use

funds granted or transferred to purchase goods and services or retain those funds for future purchases.

Where contributions recognised as revenues during the reporting period were obtained on the condition 

that they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period, and those conditions were 

undischarged as at the reporting date, the nature of and amounts pertaining to those undischarged 

conditions are disclosed in Note 2(c) . That note also discloses the amount of contributions recognised

as revenues in a previous reporting period which were obtained in respect of the local government's 

operations for the current reporting period.

(q) Superannuation

The Shire contributes to a number of Superannuation Funds on behalf of employees. All funds to

which the Shire contributes are defined contribution plans.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Current and Non-Current Classification

In the determination of whether an asset or liability is current or non-current, consideration is given to the  

time when each asset or liability is expected to be settled.  The asset or liability is classified as current if  

it is expected to be settled within the next 12 months, being the Shire’s operational cycle. In the case

of liabilities where the Shire does not have the unconditional right to defer settlement beyond 12 months,

such as vested long service leave, the liability is classified as current even if not expected to be settled  

within the next 12 months.  Inventories held for trading are classified as current even if not expected to be  

realised in the next 12 months except for land held for sale where it is held as non-current based on the  

Shire’s intentions to release for sale.

(s) Rounding Off Figures

All figures shown in this annual financial report, other than a rate in the dollar, are rounded to the nearest 

dollar.

(t) Comparative Figures

Where required, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation for the  

current financial year.

When the Shire applies an accounting policy retrospectively, makes a retrospective restatement or 

reclassifies items in its financial statement, an additional (third) statement of financial position as at the

beginning of the preceding period in addition to the minimum comparative financial statements is

presented.

(u) Budget Comparative Figures

Unless otherwise stated, the budget comparative figures shown in this annual financial report relate to the 

original budget estimate for the relevant item of disclosure.
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES 2017 2016

$ $

(a) Net Result

The Net result includes:

(i) Charging as an expense:

Auditors remuneration

- Audit by RSM - Final 19,468 12,050

- Audit by RSM - Interim 4,165 4,992

- Other Services by RSM 0 1,000

- Other Services by Moore Stephens 6,350 14,220

Depreciation

Buildings - non-specialised 86,814 87,559

Buildings - specialised 376,227 372,884

Furniture and equipment 13,553 4,307

Plant and equipment 231,244 278,980

Infrastructure - Roads 498,888 498,889

Infrastructure - Footpaths 21,025 20,983

Infrastructure - Parks and Ovals 7,770 7,769

Infrastructure - Sewerage 74,394 73,550

Infrastructure - Airfields 12,500 12,500

Infrastructure - Dams 36,339 36,340

Infrastructure - Playground Equipment 5,300 5,300

Infrastructure - Other 106,000 102,175

1,470,054 1,501,236

Interest expenses (finance costs)

Debentures (refer Note 21 (a)) 22,752 20,945

22,752 20,945

(ii) Crediting as revenue: 

Other revenue

Reimbursements and recoveries 78,000 130,109

Significant revenue (refer above) 75,973 72,555

153,973 202,664

2017 2017 2016

Actual Budget Actual

$ $ $

Interest earnings

- Reserve funds 98,552 200,000 117,632

- Other funds 10,332 10,000 17,630

Other interest revenue (refer note 27) 63,579 27,500 36,551

172,463 237,500 171,813
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES (Continued)

(b) Statement of Objective

In order to discharge its responsibilities to the community, the Shire has developed a set of

operational and financial objectives. These objectives have been established both on an overall

basis, reflected by the Shire’s Community Vision, and for each of its broad activities/programs.

A VISION FOR MORAWA

MORAWA IS ‘BREAKING NEW GROUND’

Sustained by the town’s agricultural, mining and energy industries as well as the diverse

education and training opportunities; Morawa’s economy will remain strong. Our people will be

employed by spirited, ground breaking and progressive businesses, whilst new partnerships will

attract investment and enhance Morawa’s growth.

As the innovation hub of the North Midlands, Morawa will also service, and be serviced by, a

network of self-supporting satellite communities. An efficient bus network and quality roads will

be used by students, workers, elderly, tourist, farmers, miners and other residents between Morawa

and the surrounding towns.

Strong and committed partnerships with our neighbouring towns, coupled with friendly ‘country

town rivalries’ will bind us with our neighbours and position the North Midlands district as a strategic

and formidable West Australian region.

Our vision is for Morawa to become the future regional centre of the North Midlands, the primary

industry hub of the mid-west and a centre of excellence in research, education and training.

It will be recognised as a welcoming, safe and attractive town with resourceful and colourful

personalities. As a proud and inclusive community, our people will remain faithful to the rural values

and lifestyle whilst embracing Morawa’s rewarding career prospects and exceptional health and

social facilities and quality, affordable housing.

Morawa will entice our youth to building futures in the town, for our elderly to age in place, and

encourage city dwellers and transient workers to contemplate Morawa as a future home for their

families.

Morawa’s re-energised town centre and inviting main street will signal a return to the golden

days with commercial and retail businesses run by locals, and community organisations operating

alongside government agencies supporting the health and well-being of the region.

Our heritage buildings will come to life through contemporary social and cultural festivities year round.

Careful management will ensure Morawa’s well utilised recreational facilities remain the lifeblood

of the community, complemented by a network of natural open spaces for people all ages to enjoy.
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES (Continued)

(b) Statement of Objective (Continued)

GOVERNANCE

Objective:

To provide a management & administrative structure to service Council & the community.

Activities:

Includes members of Council, Civic Functions & Public Relations, Council Elections, 

Training/Education. 

GENERAL PURPOSE FUNDING

Objective:

To manage Council's finances.

Activities:

Includes Rates, Loans, Investments & Grants.

LAW, ORDER, PUBLIC SAFETY

Objective:

To provide, develop & manage services in response to community needs.

Activities:

Includes Emergency Services & Animal Control.

HEALTH

Objective:

To provide, develop & manage services in response to community needs.

Activities:

Includes Environmental Health, Medical & Health facilities. 

EDUCATION AND WELFARE

Objective:

To provide, develop & manage services in response to community needs.

Activities:

Includes Education, Welfare & Children's Services.

HOUSING

Objective:

To ensure quality housing and appropriate infrastructure is maintained.

Activities:

Includes Staff & Other Housing.

Shire operations as disclosed in these financial statements encompass the following service

orientated activities/programs.
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2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES (Continued)

(b) Statement of Objective (Continued)

COMMUNITY AMENITIES

Objective:

To provide, develop & manage services in response to community needs.

Activities:

Includes Refuse Collection, Sewerage, Cemetery, Building Control, Town Planning & Townscape.

RECREATION AND CULTURE

Objective:

To ensure the recreational & cultural needs of the community are met.

Activities:

Includes Pools, Halls, Library, Oval, Parks & Gardens & Recreational Facilities.

TRANSPORT

Objective:

To effectively manage transport infrastructure.

Activities:

Includes Roads, Footpaths, Private Works, Machine Operating Costs, Outside Wages & Airstrip.

ECONOMIC SERVICES

Objective:

To foster economic development, tourism & rural services in the district.

Activities:

Includes Tourism, Rural Services, Economic Development & Caravan Park.

OTHER PROPERTY AND SERVICES

Objective:

To provide control accounts and reporting facilities for all other operations.

Activities:

Includes Private Works, Public Works Overheads, Plant Operating Costs, Administration Overheads 

and Unclassified Items. 

SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016

$ $

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on Hand - Unrestricted 550 550

Cash at Bank - Municipal 140,535 103,537

Restricted - Reserves 6,997,139 6,308,522

7,138,224 6,412,609

Cash at Bank - Municipal

  Unrestricted Cash 19,640 (326,022)

  Restricted Cash 120,895 429,559

140,535 103,537

The following restrictions have been imposed by

regulations or other externally imposed requirements:

Leave Reserve 11 281,137 286,652

Plant Reserve 11 905,518 941,344

Building Reserve 11 99,976 79,045

Economic Development Reserve 11 109,308 108,035

Community Development Reserve 11 1,187,559 1,376,593

Sewerage Reserve 11 216,306 144,602

Unspent Grants and Contributions Reserve 11 877,390 92,743

Morawa Future Funds Interest Reserve 11 88,036 54,705

Morawa Community Future Funds Reserve 11 2,121,127 2,140,600

Refuse Transfer Station Reserve 11 27 134,515

Aged Care Units Reserve 11 9,131 9,025

ST-N/Midlands Solar Thermal Power Reserve 11 # 558,966 550,687

ST-Morawa Revitalisation Reserve 11 # 176,348 173,736

Business Units Reserve 11 81,962 61,240

Legal Fees Reserve 11 20,177 15,000

Road Reserve 11 141,649 140,000

Aged Care ex MCC Unit 1-4 Reserve 11 67,964 0

Aged Care Unit 5 Reserve 11 54,558 0

6,997,139 6,308,522

# - Funds relating to these reserves are held in an overnight cash deposit facility with the 

West Australian Treasury Corporation. Access to these funds requires two authorised signatories

from the Department of Regional Development and Lands before being released to the Shire.
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2017 2016

$ $

4. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Current

Rates outstanding 487,406 374,377

Sundry debtors 48,351 998,442

GST receivable 36,534 25,501

Other Current Debtors - Diesel Rebate and Accrued Interest 114,161 9,819

Provision for Doubtful Debts (723) (15,595)

685,729 1,392,544

Non-current

Rates outstanding - pensioners 16,559 13,935

16,559 13,935

Information with respect  the impairment or otherwise of the totals of rates outstanding 

and sundry debtors is as follows:

Rates outstanding 487,406 374,377

Includes:

Past due and not impaired 487,406 372,259

Impaired 0 2,118

Sundry debtors 48,351 998,442

Includes:

Past due and not impaired 18,215 63,804

Impaired 722 13,477

5. INVENTORIES

Current

Fuels and Materials 1,118 1,335

1,118 1,335
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2017 2016

$ $

6 (a). PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and buildings

 - Independent valuation 2014 - Level 2 0 1,765,500

 - Independent valuation 2014 - Level 3 0 76,000

 - Independent valuation 2017 - Level 2 1,133,660 0

 - Independent valuation 2017 - Level 3 63,000 0

1,196,660 1,841,500

Land - vested in and under the control of Council at:

 - Management Valuation 2014 - Level 3 0 505,885

 - Independent valuation 2017 - level 3 7,400 0

7,400 505,885

1,204,060 2,347,385

Buildings - non-specialised at:

 - Independent valuation 2014 - Level 2 0 2,917,000

 - Independent valuation 2017 - level 2 4,258,000 0

 - Additions after valuation - cost 0 450,214

Less: accumulated depreciation 0 (243,143)

4,258,000 3,124,071

Buildings - specialised at:

 - Independent valuation 2014 - Level 3 0 17,465,000

 - Management valuation 2014 - Level 3 0 71,406

 - Independent valuation 2017 - level 3 15,190,700 0

 - Additions after valuation - cost 0 2,290,573

Less: accumulated depreciation 0 (1,106,005)

15,190,700 18,720,974

19,448,700 21,845,045

Total land and buildings 20,652,760 24,192,430

Furniture and equipment at:

 - Independent valuation 2016 - Level 2 49,300 49,300

 - Management Valuation 2016 - Level 2 10,159 10,159

 - Management Valuation 2016 - Level 3 35,091 35,091

 - Additions after valuation - cost 11,702 0

Less: accumulated depreciation (13,553) 0

92,699 94,550
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2017 2016

$ $

6 (a). PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Plant and equipment at:

 - Independent valuation 2016 - Level 2 1,272,000 1,312,000

 - Management Valuation 2016 - Level 2 436,282 591,373

 - Management Valuation 2016 - Level 3 128,834 128,834

 - Additions after valuation - cost 732,396 0

Less: accumulated depreciation (209,865) 0

2,359,647 2,032,207

Works in Progress at:

 - Works in Progress 0 199,697

0 199,697

23,105,106 26,518,884

The fair value of property, plant and equipment is determined at least every three years in accordance

with the regulatory framework. Additions since the date of valuation are shown as cost, given they 

were acquired at arms length and any accumulated depreciation reflects the usage of service 

potential, it is considered the recorded written down value approximates fair value. At the end of each

intervening period the valuation is reviewed and where appropriate the fair value is updated to

reflect current market conditions. This process is considered to be in accordance with Local Government 

(Financial Management) Regulation 17A (2) which requires property, plant and equipment to be shown

 at fair value.
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2017 2016

$ $

7 (a). INFRASTRUCTURE

Infrastructure - Roads

  - Management valuation 2015 - Level 3 56,477,482 56,477,482

 - Additions after valuation - cost 2,542,599 1,017,688

Less: accumulated depreciation (25,023,936) (24,525,048)

33,996,145 32,970,122

Infrastructure - Footpaths

  - Management valuation 2015 - Level 3 1,049,165 1,049,165

 - Additions after valuation - cost 2,075 2,075

Less: accumulated depreciation (669,181) (648,156)

382,059 403,084

Infrastructure - Parks and Ovals

 - Independent valuation 2014 - Level 3 0 357,000

 - Independent valuation 2017 - Level 3 1,520,150 0

 - Additions after valuation - cost 0 308,430

Less: accumulated depreciation (699,400) (23,309)

820,750 642,121

Infrastructure - Sewerage

 - Independent valuation 2015 - Level 3 0 2,942,000

 - Independent valuation 2017 - Level 3 3,649,550 0

 - Additions after valuation - cost 0 33,761

Less: accumulated depreciation (1,381,700) (836,550)

2,267,850 2,139,211

Infrastructure - Airfields

 - Independent valuation 2015 - Level 3 0 625,000

 - Independent valuation 2017 - Level 3 2,103,500 0

Less: accumulated depreciation (1,529,500) (37,500)

574,000 587,500

Infrastructure - Dams

 - Independent valuation 2015 - Level 3 0 1,817,000

 - Independent valuation 2017 - Level 3 2,192,150 0

Less: accumulated depreciation (1,508,670) (1,185,040)

683,480 631,960

Infrastructure - Playground Equipment

 - Independent valuation 2014 - Level 3 0 53,000

 - Independent valuation 2017 - Level 3 230,650 0

Less: accumulated depreciation (127,450) (15,900)

103,200 37,100
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2017 2016

$ $

7 (a). INFRASTRUCTURE (Continued)

Infrastructure - Other

 - Independent valuation 2014 - Level 3 0 1,861,000

  - Management valuation 2014 - Level 3 0 261,161

 - Independent valuation 2017 - Level 3 9,411,750 0

  - Management valuation 2017 - Level 3 133,323 0

 - Additions after valuation - cost 0 2,461,242

Less: accumulated depreciation (4,300,847) (225,436)

5,244,226 4,357,967

Infrastructure - Works in Progress 0 714,288

0 714,288

44,071,710 42,483,353

The fair value of infrastructure is determined at least every three years in accordance with the regulatory 

framework. Additions since the date of valuation are shown as cost. Given they were acquired at arms 

length and any accumulated depreciation reflects the usage of service potential, it is considered the 

recorded written down value approximates fair value. At the end of each intervening period the valuation 

is reviewed and, where appropriate, the fair value is updated to reflect current market conditions. This 

process is considered to be in accordance with Local Government (Financial Management)Regulation 

17A(2) which requires infrastructure to be shown at fair value.

36Minutes - ACM 15 February 2018 41



S
H

IR
E

 O
F

 M
O

R
A

W
A

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 A

N
D

 F
O

R
M

IN
G

 P
A

R
T

 O
F

 T
H

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

F
O

R
 T

H
E

 Y
E

A
R

 E
N

D
E

D
 3

0
T

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

0
1
7

7
.

IN
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
 (

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

(b
)

M
o

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 C
a
rr

y
in

g
 A

m
o

u
n

ts

M
o
v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 a

m
o
u
n
ts

 o
f 

e
a
c
h
 c

la
s
s
 o

f 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 e

n
d

o
f 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

R
e
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

R
e
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

B
a
la

n
c
e

In
c
re

m
e
n

ts
/

(L
o

s
s
)/

C
a
rr

y
in

g

a
s
 a

t 
th

e
(D

e
c
re

m
e
n

ts
)

R
e
v
e
rs

a
l

Im
p

a
ir

m
e
n

t
A

m
o

u
n

t

B
e
g

in
n

in
g

T
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d

T
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d

(L
o

s
s
e
s
)/

D
e
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n
a
t 

th
e
 E

n
d

o
f 

th
e
 Y

e
a
r

A
d

d
it

io
n

s
(D

is
p

o
s
a
ls

)
to

to
 

R
e
v
e
rs

a
ls

(E
x
p

e
n

s
e
)

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
o

f 
th

e
 Y

e
a
r

R
e
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

P
ro

fi
t 

o
r 

L
o

s
s

$
$

$
$

$
$

$
$

$

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 R
o
a
d
s

3
2
,9

7
0
,1

2
2

1
,5

2
4
,9

1
1

0
0

0
0

(4
9
8
,8

8
8
)

0
3
3
,9

9
6
,1

4
5

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 F
o
o
tp

a
th

s
4
0
3
,0

8
4

0
0

0
0

0
(2

1
,0

2
5
)

0
3
8
2
,0

5
9

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 P
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 O

v
a
ls

6
4
2
,1

2
1

0
0

1
6
7
,7

3
2

1
8
,6

6
7

0
(7

,7
7
0
)

0
8
2
0
,7

5
0

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 S
e
w

e
ra

g
e

2
,1

3
9
,2

1
1

0
0

2
0
3
,0

3
3

0
0

(7
4
,3

9
4
)

0
2
,2

6
7
,8

5
0

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 A
ir
fi
e
ld

s
5
8
7
,5

0
0

0
0

(1
,0

0
0
)

0
0

(1
2
,5

0
0
)

0
5
7
4
,0

0
0

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 D
a
m

s
6
3
1
,9

6
0

0
0

8
7
,8

5
9

0
0

(3
6
,3

3
9
)

0
6
8
3
,4

8
0

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 P
la

y
g
ro

u
n
d
 E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

3
7
,1

0
0

0
0

7
1
,4

0
0

0
0

(5
,3

0
0
)

0
1
0
3
,2

0
0

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 O
th

e
r

4
,3

5
7
,9

6
7

1
,1

7
6
,0

5
4

0
(8

8
6
,3

8
1
)

0
0

(1
0
6
,0

0
0
)

7
0
2
,5

8
6

5
,2

4
4
,2

2
6

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 W
o
rk

s
 i
n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s

7
1
4
,2

8
8

0
0

0
0

0
0

(7
1
4
,2

8
8
)

0

T
o

ta
l 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
4
2
,4

8
3
,3

5
3

2
,7

0
0
,9

6
5

0
(3

5
7
,3

5
7
)

1
8
,6

6
7

0
(7

6
2
,2

1
6
)

(1
1
,7

0
2
)

4
4
,0

7
1
,7

1
0

3
7

M
in

ut
es

 - 
AC

M
 1

5 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
8

42



7
.

IN
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
 (

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

(c
)

F
a

ir
 V

a
lu

e
 M

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

ts

A
s

s
e

t 
C

la
s

s
F

a
ir

 V
a

lu
e

 

H
ie

ra
rc

h
y

V
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 T

e
c

h
n

iq
u

e
B

a
s

is
 o

f 
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
D

a
te

 o
f 

la
s

t 

V
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
In

p
u

ts
 u

s
e

d

In
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 -

 R
o

a
d

s
3

C
o

s
t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 u
s
in

g
 d

e
p

re
c
ia

te
d

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
c
o

s
t

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
5

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
2

),
 

re
s
id

u
a

l 
v
a

lu
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 u

s
e

fu
l 
lif

e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
3

) 
in

p
u

ts

In
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 -

 F
o

o
tp

a
th

s
3

C
o

s
t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 u
s
in

g
 d

e
p

re
c
ia

te
d

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
c
o

s
t

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
5

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
2

),
 

re
s
id

u
a

l 
v
a

lu
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 u

s
e

fu
l 
lif

e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
3

) 
in

p
u

ts

In
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 -

 P
a

rk
s

 a
n

d
 O

v
a

ls
3

C
o

s
t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 u
s
in

g
 d

e
p

re
c
ia

te
d

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
c
o

s
t

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t

re
g

is
te

re
d

v
a

lu
e

rs

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
7

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
2

),
 

re
s
id

u
a

l 
v
a

lu
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 u

s
e

fu
l 
lif

e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
3

) 
in

p
u

ts

In
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 -

 S
e

w
e

ra
g

e
3

C
o

s
t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 u
s
in

g
 d

e
p

re
c
ia

te
d

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
c
o

s
t

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t

re
g

is
te

re
d

v
a

lu
e

rs

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
7

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
2

),
 

re
s
id

u
a

l 
v
a

lu
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 u

s
e

fu
l 
lif

e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
3

) 
in

p
u

ts

In
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 -

 A
ir

fi
e

ld
s

3
C

o
s
t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 u
s
in

g
 d

e
p

re
c
ia

te
d

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
c
o

s
t

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t

re
g

is
te

re
d

v
a

lu
e

rs

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
7

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
2

),
 

re
s
id

u
a

l 
v
a

lu
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 u

s
e

fu
l 
lif

e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
3

) 
in

p
u

ts

In
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 -

 D
a

m
s

3
C

o
s
t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 u
s
in

g
 d

e
p

re
c
ia

te
d

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
c
o

s
t

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t

re
g

is
te

re
d

v
a

lu
e

rs

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
7

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
2

),
 

re
s
id

u
a

l 
v
a

lu
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 u

s
e

fu
l 
lif

e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
3

) 
in

p
u

ts

S
H

IR
E

 O
F

 M
O

R
A

W
A

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 A

N
D

 F
O

R
M

IN
G

 P
A

R
T

 O
F

 T
H

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

F
O

R
 T

H
E

 Y
E

A
R

 E
N

D
E

D
 3

0
T

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

0
1

7

3
8

M
in

ut
es

 - 
AC

M
 1

5 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
8

43



7
.

IN
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
 (

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

(c
)

F
a

ir
 V

a
lu

e
 M

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

ts
 (

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

)

A
s

s
e

t 
C

la
s

s
F

a
ir

 V
a

lu
e

 

H
ie

ra
rc

h
y

V
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 T

e
c

h
n

iq
u

e
B

a
s

is
 o

f 
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
D

a
te

 o
f 

la
s

t 

V
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
In

p
u

ts
 u

s
e

d

In
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 -

 P
la

y
g

ro
u

n
d

 

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

3
C

o
s
t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 u
s
in

g
 d

e
p

re
c
ia

te
d

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
c
o

s
t

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t

re
g

is
te

re
d

v
a

lu
e

rs

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
7

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
2

),
 

re
s
id

u
a

l 
v
a

lu
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 u

s
e

fu
l 
lif

e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
3

) 
in

p
u

ts

In
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 -

 O
th

e
r

3
C

o
s
t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 u
s
in

g
 d

e
p

re
c
ia

te
d

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 
c
o

s
t

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t

re
g

is
te

re
d

v
a

lu
e

rs

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
7

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
2

),
 

re
s
id

u
a

l 
v
a

lu
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 u

s
e

fu
l 
lif

e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
3

) 
in

p
u

ts

L
e

v
e

l 
3

 i
n

p
u

ts
 a

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
s
 t
o

 f
u

tu
re

 v
a

lu
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
a

tt
e

rn
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 u

ti
lis

in
g

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 
If

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 a
s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s
 w

e
re

 v
a

ri
e

d
 ,
 t
h

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 

to
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 h

ig
h

e
r 

o
r 

lo
w

e
r 

fa
ir
 v

a
lu

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t.

D
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 n

o
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 t
e

c
h

n
iq

u
e

s
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 t
h

e
 f

a
ir
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 u

s
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
3

 i
n

p
u

ts
.

S
H

IR
E

 O
F

 M
O

R
A

W
A

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 A

N
D

 F
O

R
M

IN
G

 P
A

R
T

 O
F

 T
H

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

F
O

R
 T

H
E

 Y
E

A
R

 E
N

D
E

D
 3

0
T

H
 J

U
N

E
 2

0
1

7

3
9

M
in

ut
es

 - 
AC

M
 1

5 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
8

44



SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2017 2016

$ $

8. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Current

Sundry creditors 92,665 250,490

Accrued interest on debentures 3,510 4,870

Accrued salaries and wages 8,965 38,370

Accrued expenditure 7,588 6,025

FBT Liability 9,060 9,446

PAYG Liability 43,671 48,960

165,459 358,161

9. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Current

Secured by floating charge

   Debentures 70,815 66,743

70,815 66,743

Non-current

Secured by floating charge

   Debentures 381,781 452,596

381,781 452,596

Additional detail on borrowings is provided in Note 21.

10. PROVISIONS

Provision for Provision for

Annual Long Service

Leave Leave Total

$ $ $

Opening balance at 1 July 2016

Current provisions 140,768 204,633 345,401

Non-current provisions 0 37,661 37,661

140,768 242,294 383,062

Additional provision 4,027 23,959 27,986

Balance at 30 June 2017 144,795 266,253 411,048

Comprises

Current 144,795 239,867 384,662

Non-current 0 26,386 26,386

144,795 266,253 411,048
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

13. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of Cash

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash and cash equivalents,

net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of the reporting period is reconciled to the

related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

2017

2017 Budget 2016

$ $ $

Cash and cash equivalents 7,138,224 5,372,693 6,412,609

(b) Reconciliation of Net Cash Provided By

Operating Activities to Net Result

Net result 2,743,823 2,891,570 (418,472)

Non-cash flows in Net result:

Depreciation 1,470,054 1,683,278 1,501,236

(Profit)/Loss on sale of asset 41,439 18,259 74,790

Reversal of loss on revaluation of fixed assets (18,667) 0 0

Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase)/Decrease in receivables 704,191 872,055 (744,183)

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 217 0 8,789

Increase/(Decrease) in payables (192,702) 209,257 135,098

Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 27,986 34,912 53,167

Grants contributions for

  the development of assets (2,265,831) (3,738,832) (1,291,028)

Net cash from operating activities 2,510,510 1,970,499 (680,603)

2017 2016

(c) Undrawn Borrowing Facilities $ $

Credit Standby Arrangements

Bank overdraft limit 800,000 800,000

Bank overdraft at balance date 0 0

Credit card limit 15,000 15,000

Credit card balance at balance date 3,350 (1,086)

Total amount of credit unused 818,350 813,914

Loan facilities

Loan facilities - current 70,815 66,743

Loan facilities - non-current 381,781 452,596

Total facilities in use at balance date 452,596 519,339

Unused loan facilities at balance date NIL NIL
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Old Morawa Hospital

15. CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating Lease Commitments

(b) Capital Expenditure Commitments

•         The Shire of Morawa Landfill site (Gutha) Reserve 17830

Until the Shire conducts an investigation to determine the presence and scope of contamination, assess

the risk and agree with the DER the need and criteria for remediation, the Shire is unable to accurately

quantify its clean-up liabilities for potentially contaminated sites.  The Shire is continuing to monitor the

sites and will progressively undertake site investigations and remediation on a risk based approach.  This

approach is consistent with the DER guidelines.

The Shire of Morawa has in compliance with the Contaminated Sites Act 2003 section 11 listed sites to be

possible sources of contamination:

•         The Shire of Morawa Works Depot. Reserve 36276

•         The Shire of Morawa Landfill site (existing) Reserve 20087

•         The Shire of Morawa Waste Water Treatment Plant Reserve 37310

•         The Shire of Morawa Landfill site (Canna) UCL east of Reserve 18321

The Shire was granted a management order over Reserve 52057 on 22 April 2015 (the Old Hospital Site).

The buildings on the site are in a state of disrepair, and it is assumed, include asbestos containing

materials (ACM's) within the buildings fabric.  

The recent inclusion of the facility onto the asset register and the likelihood that it contains ACM requires it

to be identified and included on the Shire’s Asbestos Register, in which any ACM present in a Shire built

asset is identified and recorded. To this end, an inspection of the facility will be conducted by a suitably

accredited inspector to ascertain the location of any ACM within the facility and to describe the current

condition of that material and any required control measures.

The Shire did not have any future operating lease commitments at the reporting date.

The Shire did not have any future capital expenditure commitments at the reporting date.

This will be conducted as part of the Shire’s scheduled annual review of the Shire of Morawa Asbestos

Register (in 2018).

Until the Shire conducts an inspection to determine the scope of any ACM’s, assess the risk and the need

for any remediation, the Shire is unable to accurately quantify its clean-up liabilities for the Old Hospital

Site.
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

16. JOINT VENTURE ARRANGEMENTS

The Shire of Morawa has participated in a joint venture with Homeswest for the construction of 2 - 1 

financial statements of Council.

2017 2016

$ $

Non-current assets

Land and buildings 3,260 5,500

Less: accumulated depreciation 0 (282)

3,260 5,218

17. TOTAL ASSETS CLASSIFIED BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

2017 2016

$ $

Governance 551,238 679,525

General purpose funding 503,965 388,312

Law, order, public safety 643,256 336,364

Health 743,891 729,836

Education and welfare 559,500 460,811

Housing 3,946,813 3,330,239

Community amenities 3,178,802 3,084,113

Recreation and culture 14,114,304 13,849,630

Transport 36,615,357 35,396,100

Economic services 10,628,568 11,165,737

Other property and services 2,175,901 3,341,616

Unallocated 1,356,851 4,060,377

75,018,446 76,822,660

bedroom and 1 - 2 bedroom units in Dreghorn Street, Morawa.  The provision of this housing aims to

provide accommodation for single persons.  The Shire of Morawa has a 2% interest in the assets and 

liabilities of this joint venture.  All revenue and expenses of the joint venture are recognised in the relevant 
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

2017 2016 2015

18. FINANCIAL RATIOS

Current ratio 1.75 2.21 3.55

Asset sustainability ratio 1.89 0.99 0.89

Debt service cover ratio 22.76 (1.92) (11.32)

Operating surplus ratio 0.19 0.67 (0.81)

Own source revenue coverage ratio 0.34 0.39 0.37

The above ratios are calculated as follows:

Current ratio current assets minus restricted assets

current liabilities minus liabilities associated

with restricted assets

Asset sustainability ratio

Depreciation expenses

Debt service cover ratio annual operating surplus before interest and depreciation

principal and interest

Operating surplus ratio operating revenue minus operating expenses

own source operating revenue

Own source revenue coverage ratio own source operating revenue

operating expenses

Notes:

Information relating to the asset consumption ratio and the asset renewal funding ratio

can be found at Supplementary Ratio Information on Page 68 of this document.

Three of the 2017 ratios disclosed above were distorted by the early receipt of half of the 

allocation of the 2017-18 Financial Assistance Grant in June 2017. 

The early payment of the grant increased operating revenue in 2017 by $820,472.

Three of the 2016 and 2015 ratios disclosed above were distorted by the early receipt of half of the

allocation of the 2015-16 Financial Assistance Grant on 30 June 2015. 

The early payment of the grant increased operating revenue in 2015 and decreased

operating revenue in 2016 by $787,492.

If recognised in the year to which the allocation related, the calculations in the

2017, 2016 and 2015 columns above would be as follows:

2017 2016 2015

Debt service cover ratio 13.59 6.15 (20.61)

Operating surplus ratio (0.10) (0.36) (1.08)

capital renewal and replacement expenditure
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

23. NET CURRENT ASSETS

2017 2017 2016

(30 June 2017

Carried Brought Carried

Forward) Forward) Forward)

$ $ $

Surplus/(Deficit) 1 July 16 brought forward 558,948 1,081,056 1,081,056

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Unrestricted 20,190 (325,472) (325,472)

Restricted 7,118,034 6,738,081 6,738,081

Receivables

Rates outstanding 487,406 374,377 374,377

Sundry debtors 48,351 998,442 998,442

GST receivable 36,534 25,501 25,501

Other Current Debtors - Diesel Rebate and Accrued Interest 114,161 9,819 9,819

Provision for Doubtful Debts (723) (15,595) (15,595)

Inventories

Fuels and Materials 1,118 1,335 1,335

LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Sundry creditors (92,665) (250,490) (250,490)

Accrued interest on debentures (3,510) (4,870) (4,870)

Accrued salaries and wages (8,965) (38,370) (38,370)

Accrued expenditure (7,588) (6,025) (6,025)

FBT Liability (9,060) (9,446) (9,446)

PAYG Liability (43,671) (48,960) (48,960)

Current portion of long term borrowings

Secured by floating charge (70,815) (66,743) (66,743)

Provisions

Provision for annual leave (144,795) (140,768) (140,768)

Provision for long service leave (239,867) (204,633) (204,633)

Unadjusted net current assets 7,204,135 7,036,183 7,036,183

Adjustments

Less: Reserves - restricted cash (6,997,139) (6,308,522) (6,308,522)

Add: Secured by floating charge 70,815 66,743 66,743

Add Back : Component of Leave Liability not

Add Back : Required to be Funded 281,137 286,652 286,652

Adjusted net current assets - surplus/(deficit) 558,948 1,081,056 1,081,056

Difference

in the 2017 audited financial report and the surplus/(deficit) carried forward position as disclosed

in the 2016 audited financial report.

Composition of net current assets

(30 June 2016

There was no difference between the surplus/(deficit) 1 July 2016 brought forward position used

(1 July 2016
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2017 2016

28. FEES & CHARGES    $ $

Governance 40 143

General purpose funding 6,049 2,673

Law, order, public safety 2,129 3,694

Health 471 3,359

Education and welfare 2,744 0

Housing 66,070 45,056

Community amenities 434,155 450,343

Recreation and culture 40,269 37,267

Transport 882 427

Economic services 178,994 180,928

Other property and services 30,215 11,433

762,018 735,323

There were no changes during the year to the amount of the fees or charges detailed in the original budget.

29. GRANT REVENUE

Grants, subsidies and contributions are included as operating

revenues in the Statement of Comprehensive Income:

2017 2016

By Nature or Type:    $ $

Operating grants, subsidies and contributions

General purpose funding 2,359,438 749,603

Law, order, public safety 18,968 36,233

Education and welfare 18,993 17,724

Housing 4,545 0

Community amenities 0 88,059

Recreation and culture 5,000 9,418

Transport 3,647,212 1,312,003

Economic services (30,000) 30,000

Other property and services 2,500 0

6,026,656 2,243,040

Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions

Governance 0 84,974

Law, order, public safety 370,940 0

Education and welfare 11,000 0

Housing 578,060 0

Community amenities 3,829 0

Recreation and culture 282,000 205,105

Transport 926,232 1,000,949

Other property and services 93,770 0

2,265,831 1,291,028

8,292,487 3,534,068

30. EMPLOYEE NUMBERS

The number of full-time equivalent

employees at balance date 24 26

SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017
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2017

31. ELECTED MEMBERS REMUNERATION 2017 Budget 2016

$ $ $

The following fees, expenses and allowances were

paid to council members and/or the president.

Meeting Fees 64,000 64,000 64,125

President’s allowance 17,000 17,000 16,875

Deputy President’s allowance 4,250 4,250 4,250

Travelling expenses 0 200 0

Telecommunications allowance 522 1,500 0

85,772 86,950 85,250

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Compensation Disclosure

2017

$

The total of remuneration paid to KMP of the Shire during the year are as follows:

Short-term employee benefits 491,085

Post-employment benefits 63,711

Other long-term benefits 103,936

Termination benefits 0

658,732

Short-term employee benefits

These amounts include all salary, paid leave, fringe benefits and cash bonuses awarded to KMP except for 

details in respect to fees and benefits paid to elected members which may be found at Note 31.

Post-employment benefits

These amounts are the current-year's estimated cost of providing for the Shire's

superannuation contributions made during the year.

Other long-term benefits

These amounts represent long service benefits accruing during the year.

Termination benefits

These amounts represent termination benefits paid to KMP (Note: may or may not be

applicable in any given year).

SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Related Parties

The Shire's main related parties are as follows:

i.    Key management personnel

Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the

activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any elected member, are considered

key management personnel.

ii.   Entities subject to significant influence by the Shire

An entity that has the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an

entity, but does not have control over those policies, is an entity which holds significant influence.

Significant influence may be gained by share ownership, statute or agreement.

iii.  Joint venture entities accounted for under the equity method

The Shire has a 2% interest in 2 - 1 bedroom and 1 - 2 bedrrom units in Dreghorn Street, Morawa. 

The interest in the joint venture entity is accounted for in these financial statements using the 

equity method of accounting. For details of interests held in joint venture entities, refer to Note 16.

Transactions with related parties

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more 

favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated.

The following transactions occurred with related parties: 2017

$

Associated companies/individuals:

Sale of goods and services 316,500

Purchase of goods and services 0

Joint venture entities:

Distributions received from joint venture entities 0

Amounts outstanding from related parties:

Trade and other receivables 0

Loans to associated entities 0

Loans to key management personnel 0

Amounts payable to related parties:

Trade and other payables 0

Loans from associated entities 0

Note: Transitional provisions contained within AASB 2015-6 do not require comparative 

related party disclosures to be presented in the period of initial application. As a consequence,

only disclosures in relation to the current year have been presented.

SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017
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33. MAJOR LAND TRANSACTIONS

The Shire did not participate in any major land transactions during the 2016/2017 financial year.

34. TRADING UNDERTAKINGS AND MAJOR TRADING UNDERTAKINGS

The Shire did not participate in any trading undertakings or major trading undertakings during the 2016/2017

financial year.

SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

foreign currency risk.

Carrying Value Fair Value

2017 2016 2017 2016

$ $ $ $

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7,138,224 6,412,609 7,138,224 6,412,609

Receivables 702,288 1,406,479 702,288 1,406,479

7,840,512 7,819,088 7,840,512 7,819,088

Financial liabilities

Payables 165,459 358,161 165,459 358,161

Borrowings 452,596 519,339 325,501 384,974

618,055 877,500 490,960 743,135

Fair value is determined as follows:

• Cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables - estimated to the carrying value which

approximates net market value.

• Borrowings, held to maturity investments, estimated future cash flows discounted by the current 

market interest rates applicable to assets and liabilities with similar risk profiles.

• Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, available for sale financial assets - based on 

quoted market prices at the reporting date or independent valuation.

The Shire’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and

The Shire does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to

Financial risk management is carried out by the finance area under policies approved by the Council.

The Shire held the following financial instruments at balance date:

interest rate risk.  The Shire’s overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Shire.
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Available-for-sale financial assets

Held-to-maturity investments 

The major risk associated with investments is price risk - the risk that the capital value of investments

may fluctuate due to changes in market prices, whether these changes are caused by factors specific

to individual financial instruments of their issuers or factors affecting similar instruments traded in a

market.

could affect returns.

2017 2016

$ $

Impact of a 1% 
(1)

 movement in interest rates on cash

 - Equity 68,104 75,154

 - Statement of Comprehensive Income 68,104 75,154

Notes:
(1)

Cash and investments are also subject to interest rate risk - the risk that movements in interest rates

Another risk associated with cash is credit risk – the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its 

The Shire manages these risks by diversifying its portfolio and only investing ininvestments authorised

The Shire’s objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate

level of liquidity and preserving capital. The finance area manages the cash and investments portfolio 

with the assistance of independent advisers (where applicable). Council has an investment policy and 

the policy is subject to review by Council. An Investment Report is provided to Council on a monthly 

basis setting out the make-up and performance of the portfolio.

obligations under a financial instrument resulting in a financial loss to the Shire.

by Local Government (Financial Management) Regulation 19C . Council also seeks advice from 

independent advisers (where considered necessary) before placing any cash and investments.

Sensitivity percentages based on management's expectation of future possible market movements.
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Receivables

most non-rate debtors.

2017 2016

Percentage of rates and annual charges

 - Current 0% 0%

 - Overdue 100% 100%

Percentage of other receivables

 - Current 70% 93%

 - Overdue 30% 7%

The profile of the Shire’s credit risk at balance date was:

The Shire makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on 

There are no material receivables that have been subject to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.  

encourages ratepayers to pay rates by the due date through incentives.

a secured charge over the land – that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt.  The Shire is also able

to charge interest on overdue rates and annual charges at higher than market rates, which further 

encourages payment.

monitored for acceptable collection performance.

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of the Shire to recover these debts as

Shire manages this risk by monitoring outstanding debt and employing debt recovery policies. It also

The Shire’s major receivables comprise rates and annual charges and user charges and fees. The major

The level of outstanding receivables is reported to Council monthly and benchmarks are set and 

risk associated with these receivables is credit risk – the risk that the debts may not be repaid. The
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36. PRIOR PERIOD CORRECTIONS

1)

Refer Financial Corrected

Notes Report Comparative

Above 2016 2016 Adjustment

$ $ $

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BY NATURE OR TYPE:-
   Expenses - Depreciation 1 (1,511,998) (1,501,236) 10,762

   Total Expenses 1 (6,428,063) (6,417,301) 10,762

   Net Result 1 (429,234) (418,472) 10,762

   Total Comprehensive Income 1 (430,888) (420,126) 10,762

BY PROGRAM:-
   Expenses - Transport 1 (2,818,922) (2,808,160) 10,762

   Total Expenses 1 (6,428,063) (6,417,301) 10,762

   Net Result 1 (429,234) (418,472) 10,762

   Total Comprehensive Income 1 (430,888) (420,126) 10,762

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Infrastructure 1 43,097,334 42,483,353 (613,981)

Total Non-Current Assets 1 69,630,153 69,016,172 (613,981)

Total Assets 1 77,436,641 76,822,660 (613,981)

Net Assets 1 76,176,079 75,562,098 (613,981)

Retained Surplus 1 32,872,289 32,282,013 (590,276)

Revaluation Surplus 1 36,995,268 36,971,563 (23,705)

Total Equity 1 76,176,079 75,562,098 (613,981)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Retained Surplus:-
   Balance at 1 July 2015 1 32,782,099 32,181,061 (601,038)

   Balance at 30 June 2016 1 32,872,289 32,282,013 (590,276)

Revaluation Surplus:- 
   Balance at 1 July 2015 1 36,996,922 36,973,217 (23,705)

   Balance at 30 June 2016 1 36,995,268 36,971,563 (23,705)

Total Equity:- 
   Balance at 1 July 2015 1 76,606,967 75,982,224 (624,743)

   Net Result 2016 1 (429,234) (418,472) 10,762

   Balance at 30 June 2016 1 76,176,079 75,562,098 (613,981)

SHIRE OF MORAWA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

The following adjustments have been made to comparative amounts in the 30 June 2017 Financial Report to bring to

account financial activities that were incorrectly stated in 2015/16. Details of these activities are listed below:-

Operating expenditure relating to the Wildflower Country Project for the 2010/11 and 2011/12 financial years was

capitalised when it should have been expensed. This expenditure was incurred on assets not belonging to or under

the control of the Shire but forming part of the Wildflower Country Project.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

ii) Infrastructure Other of $4,719 and depreciation of $18,986 was written back prior to 2015/16 against the opening

balance of revaluation surplus as at 1 July 2015.

As a result, Infrastructure Other of $646,671 and depreciation of $21,928 was written back prior to 30 June 2015.

Further to this depreciation of $10,762 was written back in the 2016 financial year. Details are as follows:

i) Infrastructure Other of $641,952 and depreciation of $40,914 was written back prior to 2015/16 against the

opening balance of retained surplus as at 1 July 2015.

iii) Depreciation of $10,762 was written back in 2015/16. This was adjusted against depreciation for that year and

Infrastructure Other accordingly.
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36. PRIOR PERIOD CORRECTIONS (Continued)

Refer Financial Corrected

Notes Report Comparative

Above 2016 2016 Adjustment

$ $ $

RATE SETTING STATEMENT

Expenditure from operating activities:-

   Transport 1 (2,818,922) (2,808,160) 10,762

Operating activities excluded from budget:-

   Depreciation and amortisation on assets 1 1,511,998 1,501,236 (10,762)

Total expenditure from operating activities 1 (6,523,798) (6,513,036) 10,762

NOTE 2 - REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Depreciation

    Infrastructure - Other 1 112,937 102,175 (10,762)

Total depreciation 1 1,511,998 1,501,236 (10,762)

NOTE 7 - INFRASTRUCTURE

Infrastructure - Other:-

   Management valuation 2014 - Level 3 1 907,832 261,161 (646,671)

   Accumulated Depreciation 1 (258,126) (225,436) 32,690

Movements in Carrying Amounts:-
  Total - Other Infrastructure 1 4,971,948 4,357,967 (613,981)

NOTE 12 - REVALUATION SURPLUS

Infrastructure - Other:-

   2016 Opening Balance 1 1,721,924 1,698,219 (23,705)

   2016 Closing Balance 1 1,721,924 1,698,219 (23,705)

Total Revaluation Surplus:-

   2016 Opening Balance 1 36,996,922 36,973,217 (23,705)

   2016 Closing Balance 1 36,995,268 36,971,563 (23,705)

NOTE 13 - NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(b) - Reconciliation of Net Cash Provided By

      Operating Activities to Net Result

       - Net Result 1 (429,234) (418,472) 10,762

      - Depreciation 1 1,511,998 1,501,236 (10,762)

NOTE 17 - TOTAL ASSETS

Transport 1 36,010,081 35,396,100 (613,981)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

SHIRE OF MORAWA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE RATEPAYERS OF 

SHIRE OF MORAWA 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial report of Shire of Morawa, which comprises the statement of financial position as 
at 30 June 2017, the statements of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and the Chief Executive Officer’s statement.  

In our opinion:  

a) The accompanying financial report: 

(i) Presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Shire of Morawa as at 30 June 2017, 
and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended; 

(ii) Complies with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations); 
and 

(iii) Is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1995 Part 6 and the 
Regulations under that Act. 

b) The Supplementary Ratio Information included in the financial report is supported by verifiable information 
and reasonable assumptions. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those 

standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of 

our report. We are independent of the Shire of Morawa in accordance with the ethical requirements of the 

Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

(the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with the Code.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. 
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Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer for the financial report 

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in 

accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the Chief Executive Officer 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial report, the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for assessing the Shire of Morawa’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting.  

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for overseeing the Shire of Morawa’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 

be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and 

Assurance Standards Board website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf. This 

description forms part of our auditor's report.  

Report on statutory compliance 

We did not, during the course of our audit, become aware of any instances where Shire of Morawa did not comply 

with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1995 and the Local Government (Financial Management) 

Regulations 1996 as they apply to the financial report. 

RSM AUSTRALIA PTY LTD 

Perth, WA D J WALL 

Dated: 20 December 2017 Director 
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RATIO INFORMATION

2017 2016 2015

Asset consumption ratio 0.54 0.51 0.52

Asset renewal funding ratio 0.90 0.67 0.60

The above ratios are calculated as follows:

Asset consumption ratio

Asset renewal funding ratio

depreciated replacement costs of assets

current replacement cost of depreciable assets

NPV of planning capital renewal over 10 years

NPV of required capital expenditure over 10 years

SHIRE OF MORAWA

SUPPLEMENTARY RATIO INFORMATION

The following information relates to those ratios which only require attestation they have been checked

and are supported by verifiable information.  It does not form part of the audited financial report.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2017
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THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
AUDIT | TAX | CONSULTING

RSM Australia Pty Ltd is a member of the RSM network and trades as RSM.  RSM is the trading name used by the members of the RSM network.  Each member of the RSM network is an independent 
accounting and consulting firm which practices in its own right.  The RSM network is not itself a separate legal entity in any jurisdiction. 

RSM Australia Pty Ltd ACN 009 321 377 atf Birdanco Practice Trust ABN 65 319 382 479 trading as RSM

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation

RSM Australia Pty Ltd

  Level 32 Exchange Tower, 2 The Esplanade 
Perth WA 6000

GPO Box R1253 Perth WA 6844

T +61 (0) 8 9261 9100
F +61 (0) 8 9261 9111

www.rsm.com.au
Email: david.wall@rsm.com.au 
Direct line: 08 9261 9387 
DJW:SET 

20 December 2017 

PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL 

Mr Chris Linnell 
Chief Executive Officer 
Shire of Morawa 
P O Box 14 
MORAWA WA 6623 

Dear Mr Linell 

Audit Findings for the Year Ended 30 June 2017 

We have now completed our final audit work subject to normal completion procedures. 

This report is part of a continuing dialogue between the Shire and ourselves. This report has been prepared to 

detail the principal audit and accounting issues of governance interest that have come to our attention as a result 

of the performance of our audit for the year ended 30 June 2017.  We have prepared this report in accordance 

with Auditing Standard ASA 260 Communications With Those Charged With Governance. 

An audit of financial statements is not designed to identify all matters that may be relevant to those charged with 

governance.  Accordingly, the audit does not ordinarily identify all such matters.  For this reason the report is 

intended for the sole use of the Shire and we consider it inappropriate for this report to be made available to third 

parties, or quoted or referred to, without our written consent.  We do not accept responsibility to any other persons 

or for any reliance that third parties may place on it. 

We set out below details of significant matters concerning the Shire’s internal control, accounting practices and 

other observations which should be considered by management. However, an audit is not designed to identify all 

matters relevant to governance. 

5.1b Management Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2016

Minutes - ACM 15 February 2018 74



Page 2 of 4 

Matters previously identified and reported in 2016

Part of audit testing requires us to follow up on prior year management letter points to ensure that appropriate 

measures have been taken to address the issues reported. Our management letter for the year ended 

30 June 2016 listed four points for management consideration. The following table illustrates the management 

letter points raised and whether management has taken appropriate action to subsequently resolve the matter: 

Issues reported from 2016 

audit 

Rating Action taken by 

management 

Comment 

1. Non-compliance with 

purchasing policy 

Significant Not Resolved During our testing of controls in the 

purchasing cycle, we have identified 

instances where the purchasing policy 

has not been complied with. 

This matter will be raised again in the 

2017 Management Letter. 

2. Payment listing presented to 

Council 

Moderate Resolved Payments listing presented to Council 

for the 2017 financial year contained 

sufficient detail in relation to credit card 

transactions. 

3. Overhead allocation Moderate Resolved During the testing of the overhead 

allocation for the year ended 30 June 

2017, it was noted that this matter had 

been resolved. 

4. High annual leave accrual at 

year end 

Moderate Not Resolved During the review of annual leave 

provision, we have noted that two 

employees still have leave of more than 

300 hours each. 

This matter will be raised again in the 

2017 Management Letter. 
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Matters identified during the current audit 

During our current audit we examined the design and implementation of the internal controls relevant to the 
accounting and financial control systems. The matters to report to management in relation to the Shire’s internal 
financial controls are discussed in ANNEXURE A. 

Audit Adjustments 

The following audit adjustments were identified during the audit and have been brought to account by the Shire: 

Entry Account 

No. 

Account Description Debit ($) Credit ($) 

1 1093300 Grants/Contributions Aged Care 111,872.56

1304000 GST Input (Asset) 11,187.23

1708000 Revaluation Surplus – Land & Buildings 455,000.00

1093300   Grants/Contributions Aged Care 578,059.79

Being For:  To reclassify recognition of Morawa 

Community Care Aged Care Units from Asset 

Revaluation Reserve to Contributions 

2 1306010 Accrued Income 62,500.00

1053300   Grant Income 62,500.00

Being For:  To accrue CSRFF Grant Income 

3 1306010 Accrued Income 45,879.45

1032240   Interest Received – Reserve Accounts 45,879.45

Being For:  To accrue interest on Reserve Accounts 

4 1304000 GST Input (Asset) 1,795.00

1121500   Rural Road Construction 1,795.00

Being For:  Client initiated entry to correct GST on Road 

Construction Expenditure 

5 1708000 Revaluation Surplus – Land & Buildings 93,770

1148300   Income Relating to Unclassified 93,770

Being For:  To recognise Lot 9000 as a contribution in 

accordance with AASB 1004 Par 12 

Unadjusted Audit Differences 

There were no audit adjustment passed during the course of the audit.

Auditor’s independence 

We are not aware of any other relationships between member firms of RSM and the Shire that, in our professional 

judgement, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence or the objectivity of the audit engagement 

team. 

We confirm that in our professional judgement, RSM is independent within the meaning of regulatory and 

professional requirements and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been 

compromised. 
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Other matters 

 

As a result of our procedures, we have not identified any matters of fraud to report and we had no disagreements 

with management about significant accounting matters. 

This letter has been prepared for the sole use of Shire. It must not be disclosed to a third party or quoted to or 
referred to without our written consent. No responsibility is assumed by RSM to any other person. 

Finally, we would like to take this opportunity to thank you staff for the co-operation we have received throughout 
our audit. If there are any further matters which you wish to discuss concerning our audit, please do not hesitate 
to contact me. 

Yours faithfully 

D J WALL 

Director 
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ANNEXURE A 

SHIRE OF MORAWA

PERIOD OF AUDIT: 30 JUNE 2017 

FINDINGS IDENTIFIED DURING THE AUDIT 

Page 1 of 8 

INDEX OF FINDINGS RATING 

Significant Moderate Minor 

1. Non-compliance with purchasing policy 

2. Identification and valuation of fixed assets 

3. Ratio analysis  

4. Credit card purchases  

5. High annual leave accrual at year end  

6. Review of general ledger journal entries  

KEY TO RATINGS 

The Ratings in this management letter are based on the audit team’s assessment of risks and 
concerns with respect to the probability and/or consequence of adverse outcomes if action is not 
taken.  We give consideration to these potential adverse outcomes in the context of both quantitative 
impact (for example financial loss) and qualitative impact (for example inefficiency, non-compliance, 
poor service to the public or loss of public confidence). 

Significant - Those findings where there is potentially a significant risk to the entity should 
the finding not be addressed by the entity promptly. A significant rating could 
indicate the need for a modified audit opinion in the current year, or in a 
subsequent reporting period if not addressed.  However even if the issue is not 
likely to impact the audit opinion, it should be addressed promptly. 

Moderate - Those findings which are of sufficient concern to warrant action being taken by 
the entity as soon as practicable. 

Minor - Those findings that are not of primary concern but still warrant action being 
taken. 
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ANNEXURE A 

SHIRE OF MORAWA

PERIOD OF AUDIT: 30 JUNE 2017 

FINDINGS IDENTIFIED DURING THE AUDIT 

Page 2 of 8 

1. Non-compliance with purchasing policy (matter brought forward from the 2016 
management letter) 

Findings:
Section 3.10 Purchasing Policy of the Shire’s Policy Manual, as reviewed on 19 December 2016, 
requires that purchases meet certain conditions in order to comply with Local Government Regulations 
and the Act. 

During our procurement testing, our audit sample identified instances of insufficient documentation to 
indicate that the requisite number of quotations had either been obtained or, in some cases, had not 
been attached to the payment record. 

In addition to the above, the following exceptions were noted during sample payment testing: 

• Bitutek Pty Ltd provided services in respect of the Jones Lake and Gutha East Roads, in 
excess of the tender threshold of $150,000. While the Shire obtained WALGA e-quotes in 
terms of Section 11(2)(b) of the Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996
to satisfy the tender exemption requirements, this was not approved by Council resolution as 
required by the Shire’s Purchasing Policy. 

• Purchase orders had not been raised for certain transactions, contrary to the requirements of 
the Shire’s purchasing policy. 

Rating:  
Significant

Implication: 
Non-compliance with the purchasing policy increases the risk of breaching the Local Government 
(Functions and General) Regulations 1996 Part 4 and Local Government (Finance and General 
ledger) Regulations 11A (3)(b). 

Recommendation: 
The requirement for full compliance with the Shire’s purchasing policy must be communicated to all 
staff and be closely monitored by management. In this way the risk of non-compliance with Local 
Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996 Part 4 and Local Government (Finance and 
General ledger) Regulations 11A (3)(b) can be reduced to an acceptable level. 

Management Comment: 
A new Policy Manual has been passed by Council since 2016/17 financial year which now shows a 
clear and concise procedure for our Purchasing Policy 

Responsible Person:  

Senior Management 

Completion Date:  

Immediately 
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ANNEXURE A 

SHIRE OF MORAWA

PERIOD OF AUDIT: 30 JUNE 2017 

FINDINGS IDENTIFIED DURING THE AUDIT 

Page 3 of 8 

2. Identification and valuation of fixed assets 

Findings: 

During the 2017 financial year, the Shire revalued land and buildings and infrastructure.  The following 
adjustments were raised as a result of reconciling these asset classes: 

a. A prior period adjustment in relation to expenditure incorrectly recognised as other 
infrastructure in relation to the Wildflower Country Project; 

b. Reclassification of the recognition of the assets of Morawa Community Care Inc from the 
Asset Revaluation Reserve to contributions; and 

c. Recognition of the transfer of Lot 9000 from Landcorp at fair value. 

Rating:  

Significant

Implication: 

The incorrect capitalisation of the Wildflower Country Project has resulted in a previous period 
overstatement of the Shire’s assets in the statement of financial position and an overstatement of 
depreciation in the statement of comprehensive income.  

If not corrected, the initial recognition of the Morawa Community Care and Lot 9000 assets would 
have resulted in the Asset Revaluation Reserve being overstated and contributions revenue being 
understated. 

Recommendation: 

The Shire should ensure the Fixed Asset Register contains only expenditure of a capital nature.  
Processes should be developed to ensure contributed assets, such as those from Morawa Community 
Care Inc and Lot 9000 from Landcorp are correctly brought to account. 

Management Comment: 

Greater care will be taken with asset capitalisation in the future. A review of the asset to ensure only 
expenditure of a capital nature has been capitalised 

Responsible Person:  

EMCCS – Fred Gledhill 

Completion Date:  

Immediately and End of January 2018 
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SHIRE OF MORAWA

PERIOD OF AUDIT: 30 JUNE 2017 

FINDINGS IDENTIFIED DURING THE AUDIT 

Page 4 of 8 

3. Ratio Analysis 

Findings: 

Local Government Operational Guideline Number 18 – June 2013 (the Guideline), provides 
benchmark standards for the ratios required to be reported under regulation 50 of the Local 
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996. 

The following table summarises the Shire’s ratios in relation to the standard and indicates the Own 
Source Revenue and Asset Renewal Funding ratios are below the acceptable banding: 

Council’s Actual Ratios 

Target 
Ratio1

2017 2016 2015 

Current Ratio ≥ 1 1.75 2.21 3.55 

Asset Sustainability Ratio ≥ 0.90 1.89 0.99 0.89 

Debt Service Cover Ratio ≥ 2 22.76 (1.92) (11.32) 

Operating Surplus Ratio ≥ 0.10 0.19 0.67 (0.81) 

Own Source Revenue Coverage 
Ratio 

≥ 0.40 0.34 0.39 0.37 

Asset Consumption Ratio ≥ 0.50 0.54 0.51 0.52 

Asset Renewal Funding Ratio ≥ 0.95 0.90 0.67 0.60 

Key

Above target 
as per 

guidelines 

Within 
acceptable 
banding as 

per 
guidelines 

Below 
acceptable 
banding as 

per 
guidelines 

1Local Government Operational Guidelines Number 18 – June 2013 sets out standards for each 
ratio.  The Shire’s ratios have been compared against the ‘basic’ standard for each ratio.

Rating: 

Moderate

Implication: 

Ratios below the benchmark standard could indicate adverse trends in the short term financial 
sustainability of the Shire in accordance with the Guideline. 

Recommendation: 

The Shire needs to consider the impact of the above ratios on the short term financial sustainability of 
the Shire and any actions required to be incorporated into budgets and the long term financial plan to 
address this. 
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Management Comment: 

Management will work towards improving those ratios which are not favourable through its budget 
process and in the review of its next long term financial plan. 

Responsible Person:  

CEO – Chris Linnell 

Completion Date:  

July 2018 
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PERIOD OF AUDIT: 30 JUNE 2017 

FINDINGS IDENTIFIED DURING THE AUDIT 
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4. Credit card purchases 

Findings:
At the time of the final audit visit (October 2017), the June 2017 credit card reconciliation had not been 
signed off by the Shire CEO or President.  

Rating:  

Moderate

Implication: 
Failure to maintain timely and adequate records to support credit card transactions increases the risk 
of non-compliance with Local Government Operational Guidelines – Number 11 – September 2006 
‘Use of Corporate Credit Cards’. 

The lack of timely management review at a senior level further increases the risk of credit cards being 
abused. 

Recommendation: 

The Shire CEO or President must review credit card statements and supporting documents on a 
monthly basis. 

Management Comment: 
A policy process is to be put in place to ensure the above recommendation is put into action. An End 
of Month checklist has been put in place for management signing. 

Responsible Person:  

Candice Murphy - SFO

Completion Date:  

March 2018 
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5. High annual leave accrual at year end (matter brought forward from the 2016 
management letter) 

Findings:
During our review we identified instance where employees have annual leave accrued balances in 
excess of 300 hours each. 

Rating:  

Moderate

Implication: 
Excessive annual leave balances accrued increases the risk of an adverse impact through excessive 
financial liabilities and may also indicate over-reliance on key individuals. This over-reliance can result 
in business interruption when the employee takes extended leave or is no longer employed by the 
Shire. Failure to take leave can also mask fraud. 

Recommendation: 
The Shire should continue to manage and monitor the excessive annual leave accruals to reduce the 
financial liability, risk of business interruption and fraud. 

Management Comment: 
3 staff with excessive leave entitlements have been identified and 2 are retiring within the next 4 
months and one has booked and had approved long services leave to be taken within this financial 
year. Other staff with leave outstanding are to be contacted to book leave. 

Responsible Person:  

Chris Linnell - CEO 

Completion Date: 

June 2018
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6. Review of general ledger journal entries 

Findings:
During our sample review of general ledger journal entries we noted two instances where the 
journals had been signed by the preparer only, without evidence of independent review.  

Rating:  

Moderate

Implication: 
The lack of independent review and approval of general ledger journals increases the risk of incorrect 
financial reporting. 

Recommendation: 
General ledger journal entries must be reviewed by management, independent of the preparer.  

Management Comment: 

Policy and process have been put into place to prevent this happening in the future. All Journal entries 
and files will be checked on a completion basis and also in the End of Month basis. An End of Month 
Checklist has been compiled. 

Responsible Person:  

Candice Murphy - SFO

Completion Date:   

Immediately
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SUMMARY 
 
The Department of Local Government has distributed the 2017 Compliance Audit Return 
for completion by the Shire of Morawa. The Compliance Audit Return is one of the tools 
that allow Councils to monitor how the organisation is functioning. 
 
Each local government is to carry out a compliance audit for the period 1 January to 31 
December 2017 against the requirements included in the 2017 Compliance Audit Return.  
 
DECLARATION OF INTEREST 
 
Nil 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
 
Attachment 1 - 5.2a Completed Compliance Audit Return 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The return places emphasis on the need to bring to Council’s attention cases of non-
compliance or where full compliance was not achieved. In addition to explaining or 
qualifying cases of non-compliance.  The return also requires Council to endorse any 
remedial action taken or proposed to be taken in regard to instances of non-compliance. 
 
This year’s return has again been prepared by electronic means and will be submitted 
electronically to the Department of Local Government and Communities. 
 
The Compliance Audit Report for 2017 for the Shire of Morawa will be presented for review 
at the ordinary meeting of Council being held 15 February 2018. 
 

  

Item No/ Subject: 5.2 2017 Compliance Audit Return 
   

Date of Meeting:  15 February 2018 
 
Date & Author:  31 January 2018 – Samantha Appleton 
 
Responsible Officer: Samantha Appleton – Executive Manager Development and 

Administration 
 
Applicant/Proponent: Department of Local Government and Communities 
 

  File Number: CM.AUD.1 
 
Previous minute/s & Audit Committee Meeting 16 March 2017 
Reference: Resolution 1703010 
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OFFICER’S COMMENT 
 
The return was completed by the Executive Manager Development and Administration in 
conjunction with the CEO and other managers.  Only one area of non-compliance was 
noted. 
 
The non-compliance was in relation to the review of the Regional Price Preference Policy 
contained within Policy 3.7 Purchasing Policy adopted in October 2017.  The Local 
Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996 Regulations 24E and 24F requires 
state-wide notice of a proposed policy to be given four weeks prior to the adoption of the 
policy.  It is envisaged that the current policy will be reviewed as part of the overall review 
of the policy manual to be undertaken this year. 
 
Additionally information was sought on the Shire of Morawa’s Integrated Planning suite of 
documents.  The comments accompanying the information provided show the review 
process currently underway. 
 
COMMUNITY CONSULTATION 
 
Nil 
 
COUNCILLOR CONSULTATION 
 
Presentation to the Audit Committee 
 
STATUTORY ENVIRONMENT 
 

Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996 
 
14. Compliance audits by local governments 
 (1) A local government is to carry out a compliance audit for the period 1 January to 

31 December in each year. 
 (2) After carrying out a compliance audit the local government is to prepare a 

compliance audit return in a form approved by the Minister. 
 (3A) The local government’s audit committee is to review the compliance audit return 

and is to report to the council the results of that review. 
 (3) After the audit committee has reported to the council under subregulation (3A), 

the compliance audit return is to be — 
 (a) presented to the council at a meeting of the council; and 
 (b) adopted by the council; and 
 (c) recorded in the minutes of the meeting at which it is adopted. 
 [Regulation 14 inserted in Gazette 23 Apr 1999 p. 1724-5; amended in Gazette 

30 Dec 2011 p. 5580-1.] 
15. Compliance audit return, certified copy of etc. to be given to Executive 

Director 
 (1) After the compliance audit return has been presented to the council in 

accordance with regulation 14(3) a certified copy of the return together with — 
 (a) a copy of the relevant section of the minutes referred to in 

regulation 14(3)(c); and 
 (b) any additional information explaining or qualifying the compliance audit, 
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  is to be submitted to the Executive Director by 31 March next following the period 
to which the return relates. 

 (2) In this regulation — 
 certified in relation to a compliance audit return means signed by — 
 (a) the mayor or president; and 
 (b) the CEO. 
 [Regulation 15 inserted in Gazette 23 Apr 1999 p. 1725.] 
 
Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996 
24E. Regional price preference policies for local governments 
 (1) Where a local government intends to give a regional price preference in relation to 

a process, the local government is to — 
 (a) prepare a proposed regional price preference policy (if no policy has yet 

been adopted for that kind of contract); and 
 (b) give Statewide public notice of the intention to have a regional price 

preference policy and include in that notice — 
 (i) the region to which the policy is to relate; and 
 (ii) details of where a complete copy of the proposed policy may be 

obtained; and 
 (iii) a statement inviting submissions commenting on the proposed 

policy, together with a closing date of not less than 4 weeks for those 
submissions; 

  and 
 (c) make a copy of the proposed regional price preference policy available for 

public inspection in accordance with the notice. 
 (2) A regional price preference policy may be expressed to be — 
 (a) for different regions in respect of different parts of the contract, or the 

various contracts, comprising the basis of the tender; 
 (b) for different goods or services within a single contract or various contracts; 
 (c) for different price preferences in respect of the different goods or services, 

or the different regions, that are the subject of a tender or tenders (subject 
to the limits imposed by regulation 24D), 

  or for any combination of those factors. 
 (3) A region specified under this Part — 
 (a) must be (or include) the entire district of the local government; and 
 (b) cannot include a part of the metropolitan area. 
 (4) A policy cannot be adopted by a local government until the local government has 

considered all submissions that are received in relation to the proposed policy and, 
if that consideration results in significant changes to the proposed policy, then the 
local government must again give Statewide public notice of the altered proposed 
regional price preference policy. 

 [Regulation 24E inserted in Gazette 25 Feb 2000 p. 972-3; amended in Gazette 
31 Mar 2005 p. 1055.] 

 
24F. Adoption and notice of regional price preference policy 
 (1) A policy cannot be adopted by a local government until at least 4 weeks after the 

publication of the Statewide notice of the proposed policy. 
 (2) An adopted policy must state — 
 (a) the region or regions within which each aspect of it is to be applied; and 
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 (b) the types and nature of businesses that may be considered for each type 
of preference; and 

 (c) whether the policy applies to — 
 (i) different regions in respect of different parts of the contract, or the 

various contracts, comprising the basis of the tender; 
 (ii) different goods or services within a single contract or various 

contracts; 
 (iii) different price preferences in respect of the different goods or 

services, or the different regions, that are the subject of a tender or 
tenders, 

  or to any combination of those factors. 
 (3) An adopted policy cannot be applied until the local government gives Statewide 

notice that it has adopted that policy. 
 (4) The local government is to ensure that a copy of an adopted regional price 

preference policy is — 
 (a) included with any specifications for tenders to which the policy applies; and 
 (b) made available in accordance with regulation 29 of the Local Government 

(Administration) Regulations 1996. 
 [Regulation 24F inserted in Gazette 25 Feb 2000 p. 973-4; amended in Gazette 

31 Mar 2005 p. 1055.] 
 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Shire of Morawa Policy 3.11 Risk Management 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Nil 
 
STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS 
 
Shire of Morawa Community Strategic Plan 
4.3 A local government that is respected, professional and accountable. 
4.5 Be compliant with relevant legislation. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
Shire of Morawa Risk Management Governance Framework 
Governance  
Appropriate governance of risk management within the Shire of Morawa (the “Shire”) provides: 

• Transparency of decision making 

• Clear identification of the roles and responsibilities of the risk management functions 

• An effective Governance Structure to support the risk framework. 
 
VOTING REQUIREMENTS 
 
Simple Majority 
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OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that Council: 
 
1. Accept the Shire of Morawa 2017 Compliance Audit Return; and 

 
2. Present the Shire of Morawa 2017 Compliance Audit Return to the February 2017 

Ordinary Meeting of Council for adoption. 
 
 

COUNCIL RESOLUTION 
 

180203   Moved:  Cr Collins 
Seconded:  Cr Coaker 

 
That Council: 

 
1. Accept the Shire of Morawa 2017 Compliance Audit Return; and 

 
2. Present the Shire of Morawa 2017 Compliance Audit Return to the February 2017 

Ordinary Meeting of Council for adoption. 
 

CARRIED 5/0 
 

 
 

6.  Closure of Meeting 
       
     The President closed the meeting at 5.32pm. 
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Morawa - Compliance Audit Return 2017

No  Reference Question Response Comments Respondent

1 s3.59(2)(a)(b)(c)  
F&G Reg 7,9

Has the local government prepared a 
business plan for each major trading 
undertaking in 2017. 

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

2 s3.59(2)(a)(b)(c)  
F&G Reg 7,10

Has the local government prepared a 
business plan for each major land 
transaction that was not exempt in 
2017.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

3 s3.59(2)(a)(b)(c)  
F&G Reg 7,10

Has the local government prepared a 
business plan before entering into each 
land transaction that was preparatory 
to entry into a major land transaction 
in 2017.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

4 s3.59(4) Has the local government given 
Statewide public notice of each 
proposal to commence a major trading 
undertaking or enter into a major land 
transaction for 2017.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

5 s3.59(5) Did the Council, during 2017, resolve 
to proceed with each major land 
transaction or trading undertaking by 
absolute majority.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

Commercial Enterprises by Local Governments

Certified Copy of Return
Please submit a signed copy to the Director General of the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries 
together with a copy of section of relevant minutes.

1 of 11

Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries - Compliance Audit  Return

5.2a Completed Compliance Audit Return for Signing
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No  Reference Question Response Comments Respondent

1 s5.16, 5.17, 5.18 Were all delegations to committees 
resolved by absolute majority.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

2 s5.16, 5.17, 5.18 Were all delegations to committees in 
writing.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

3 s5.16, 5.17, 5.18 Were all delegations to committees 
within the limits specified in section 
5.17. 

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

4 s5.16, 5.17, 5.18 Were all delegations to committees 
recorded in a register of delegations.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

5 s5.18 Has Council reviewed delegations to its 
committees in the 2016/2017 financial 
year.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

6 s5.42(1),5.43  
Admin Reg 18G

Did the powers and duties of the 
Council delegated to the CEO exclude 
those as listed in section 5.43 of the 
Act.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

7 s5.42(1)(2)  Admin 
Reg 18G

Were all delegations to the CEO 
resolved by an absolute majority.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

8 s5.42(1)(2)  Admin 
Reg 18G

Were all delegations to the CEO in 
writing.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

9 s5.44(2) Were all delegations by the CEO to any 
employee in writing.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

10 s5.45(1)(b) Were all decisions by the Council to 
amend or revoke a delegation made by 
absolute majority.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

11 s5.46(1) Has the CEO kept a register of all 
delegations made under the Act to him 
and to other employees.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

12 s5.46(2) Were all delegations made under 
Division 4 of Part 5 of the Act reviewed 
by the delegator at least once during 
the 2016/2017 financial year.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

13 s5.46(3)  Admin 
Reg 19

Did all persons exercising a delegated 
power or duty under the Act keep, on 
all occasions, a written record as 
required.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

Delegation of Power / Duty

No  Reference Question Response Comments Respondent

1 s5.67 If a member disclosed an interest, did 
he/she ensure that they did not remain 
present to participate in any discussion 
or decision-making procedure relating 
to the matter in which the interest was 
disclosed (not including participation 
approvals granted under s5.68).

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

2 s5.68(2) Were all decisions made under section 
5.68(1), and the extent of participation 
allowed, recorded in the minutes of 
Council and Committee meetings.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

Disclosure of Interest

2 of 11

Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries - Compliance Audit  Return
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No  Reference Question Response Comments Respondent

3 s5.73 Were disclosures under section 5.65 or 
5.70 recorded in the minutes of the 
meeting at which the disclosure was 
made.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

4 s5.75(1)  Admin 
Reg 22 Form 2

Was a primary return lodged by all 
newly elected members within three 
months of their start day.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

5 s5.75(1)  Admin 
Reg 22 Form 2

Was a primary return lodged by all 
newly designated employees within 
three months of their start day.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

6 s5.76(1) Admin 
Reg 23 Form 3

Was an annual return lodged by all 
continuing elected members by 31 
August 2017. 

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

7 s5.76(1) Admin 
Reg 23 Form 3

Was an annual return lodged by all 
designated employees by 31 August 
2017. 

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

8 s5.77 On receipt of a primary or annual 
return, did the CEO, (or the Mayor/ 
President in the case of the CEO’s 
return) on all occasions, give written 
acknowledgment of having received 
the return.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

9 s5.88(1)(2)  Admin 
Reg 28

Did the CEO keep a register of financial 
interests which contained the returns 
lodged under section 5.75 and 5.76

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

10 s5.88(1)(2)  Admin 
Reg 28

Did the CEO keep a register of financial 
interests which contained a record of 
disclosures made under sections 5.65, 
5.70 and 5.71, in the form prescribed 
in Administration Regulation 28.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

11 s5.88 (3) Has the CEO removed all returns from 
the register when a person ceased to 
be a person required to lodge a return 
under section 5.75 or 5.76.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

12 s5.88(4) Have all returns lodged under section 
5.75 or 5.76 and removed from the 
register, been kept for a period of at 
least five years, after the person who 
lodged the return ceased to be a 
council member or designated 
employee.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

13 s5.103  Admin Reg 
34C & Rules of 
Conduct Reg 11

Where an elected member or an 
employee disclosed an interest in a 
matter discussed at a Council or 
committee meeting where there was a 
reasonable belief that the impartiality 
of the person having the interest would 
be adversely affected, was it recorded 
in the minutes.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

14 s5.70(2) Where an employee had an interest in 
any matter in respect of which the 
employee provided advice or a report 
directly to the Council or a Committee, 
did that person disclose the nature of 
that interest when giving the advice or 
report. 

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

3 of 11
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No  Reference Question Response Comments Respondent

15 s5.70(3) Where an employee disclosed an 
interest under s5.70(2), did that 
person also disclose the extent of that 
interest when required to do so by the 
Council or a Committee.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

16 s5.103(3) Admin 
Reg 34B

Has the CEO kept a register of all 
notifiable gifts received by Council 
members and employees.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

No  Reference Question Response Comments Respondent

1 s3.58(3) Was local public notice given prior to 
disposal for any property not disposed 
of by public auction or tender (except 
where excluded by Section 3.58(5)).

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

2 s3.58(4) Where the local government disposed 
of property under section 3.58(3), did 
it provide details, as prescribed by 
section 3.58(4), in the required local 
public notice for each disposal of 
property.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

Disposal of Property

No  Reference Question Response Comments Respondent

1 Elect Reg 30G (1) Did the CEO establish and maintain an 
electoral gift register and ensure that 
all 'disclosure of gifts' forms completed 
by candidates and received by the CEO 
were placed on the electoral gift 
register at the time of receipt by the 
CEO and in a manner that clearly 
identifies and distinguishes the 
candidates. 

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

Elections

No  Reference Question Response Comments Respondent

1 s7.1A Has the local government established 
an audit committee and appointed 
members by absolute majority in 
accordance with section 7.1A of the 
Act.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

2 s7.1B Where a local government determined 
to delegate to its audit committee any 
powers or duties under Part 7 of the 
Act, did it do so by absolute majority.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

3 s7.3 Was the person(s) appointed by the 
local government to be its auditor, a 
registered company auditor.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

4 s7.3, 7.6(3) Was the person or persons appointed 
by the local government to be its 
auditor, appointed by an absolute 
majority decision of Council.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

Finance

4 of 11
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No  Reference Question Response Comments Respondent

5 Audit Reg 10 Was the Auditor’s report for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2017 
received by the local government 
within 30 days of completion of the 
audit.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

6 s7.9(1) Was the Auditor’s report for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2017 
received by the local government by 
31 December 2017.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

7 S7.12A(3) Where the local government 
determined that matters raised in the 
auditor’s report prepared under s7.9
(1) of the Act required action to be 
taken by the local government, was 
that action undertaken.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

8 S7.12A (4) Where the local government 
determined that matters raised in the 
auditor’s report (prepared under s7.9
(1) of the Act) required action to be 
taken by the local government, was a 
report prepared on any actions 
undertaken.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

9 S7.12A (4) Where the local government 
determined that matters raised in the 
auditor’s report (prepared under s7.9
(1) of the Act) required action to be 
taken by the local government, was a 
copy of the report forwarded to the 
Minister by the end of the financial 
year or 6 months after the last report 
prepared under s7.9 was received by 
the local government whichever was 
the latest in time.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

10 Audit Reg 7 Did the agreement between the local 
government and its auditor include the 
objectives of the audit.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

11 Audit Reg 7 Did the agreement between the local 
government and its auditor include the 
scope of the audit.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

12 Audit Reg 7 Did the agreement between the local 
government and its auditor include a 
plan for the audit.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

13 Audit Reg 7 Did the agreement between the local 
government and its auditor include 
details of the remuneration and 
expenses to be paid to the auditor.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

14 Audit Reg 7 Did the agreement between the local 
government and its auditor include the 
method to be used by the local 
government to communicate with, and 
supply information to, the auditor.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

5 of 11
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No  Reference Question Response Comments Respondent

1 s5.56  Admin Reg 
19DA (6)

Has the local government adopted a 
Corporate Business Plan. If Yes, please 
provide adoption date of the most 
recent Plan in Comments. This 
question is optional, answer N/A if you 
choose not to respond.

Yes 20/06/2013
Review underway

Samantha 
Appleton

2 s5.56  Admin Reg 
19DA (6)

Has the local government adopted a 
modification to the most recent 
Corporate Business Plan. If Yes, please 
provide adoption date in Comments. 
This question is optional, answer N/A if 
you choose not to respond.

No Review underway Samantha 
Appleton

3 s5.56  Admin Reg 
19C (7) 

Has the local government adopted a 
Strategic Community Plan. If Yes, 
please provide adoption date of the 
most recent Plan in Comments. This 
question is optional, answer N/A if you 
choose not to respond.

Yes 21/06/2012
Review underway

Samantha 
Appleton

4 s5.56  Admin Reg 
19C (7) 

Has the local government adopted a 
modification to the most recent 
Strategic Community Plan. If Yes, 
please provide adoption date in 
Comments. This question is optional, 
answer N/A if you choose not to 
respond.

Yes 18/09/2014
Review underway

Samantha 
Appleton

5 S5.56 Has the local government adopted an 
Asset Management Plan. If Yes, in 
Comments please provide date of the 
most recent Plan, plus if adopted or 
endorsed by Council the date of 
adoption or endorsement. This 
question is optional, answer N/A if you 
choose not to respond.

Yes 16/02/2012
Review underway

Samantha 
Appleton

6 S5.56 Has the local government adopted a 
Long Term Financial Plan. If Yes, in 
Comments please provide date of the 
most recent Plan, plus if adopted or 
endorsed by Council the date of 
adoption or endorsement. This 
question is optional, answer N/A if you 
choose not to respond.

Yes 25/09/2012
Review underway

Samantha 
Appleton

7 S5.56 Has the local government adopted a 
Workforce Plan. If Yes, in Comments 
please provide date of the most recent 
Plan plus if adopted or endorsed by 
Council the date of adoption or 
endorsement. This question is optional, 
answer N/A if you choose not to 
respond.

Yes Unable to confirm 
adoption date
To be reviewed

Samantha 
Appleton

Integrated Planning and Reporting

6 of 11
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No  Reference Question Response Comments Respondent

1 Admin Reg 18C Did the local government approve the 
process to be used for the selection 
and appointment of the CEO before the 
position of CEO was advertised.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

2 s5.36(4) s5.37(3), 
Admin Reg 18A

Were all vacancies for the position of 
CEO and other designated senior 
employees advertised and did the 
advertising comply with s.5.36(4), 
5.37(3) and Admin Reg 18A.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

3 Admin Reg 18F Was the remuneration and other 
benefits paid to a CEO on appointment 
the same remuneration and benefits 
advertised for the position of CEO 
under section 5.36(4).

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

4 Admin Regs 18E Did the local government ensure 
checks were carried out to confirm that 
the information in an application for 
employment was true (applicable to 
CEO only).

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

5 s5.37(2) Did the CEO inform council of each 
proposal to employ or dismiss a 
designated senior employee.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

Local Government Employees
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No  Reference Question Response Comments Respondent

1 s5.120 Where the CEO is not the complaints 
officer, has the local government 
designated a senior employee, as 
defined under s5.37, to be its 
complaints officer. 

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

2 s5.121(1) Has the complaints officer for the local 
government maintained a register of 
complaints which records all 
complaints that result in action under 
s5.110(6)(b) or (c).

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

3 s5.121(2)(a) Does the complaints register 
maintained by the complaints officer 
include provision for recording of the 
name of the council member about 
whom the complaint is made. 

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

4 s5.121(2)(b) Does the complaints register 
maintained by the complaints officer 
include provision for recording the 
name of the person who makes the 
complaint.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

5 s5.121(2)(c) Does the complaints register 
maintained by the complaints officer 
include provision for recording a 
description of the minor breach that 
the standards panel finds has occured.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

6 s5.121(2)(d) Does the complaints register 
maintained by the complaints officer 
include the provision to record details 
of the action taken under s5.110(6)(b) 
or (c).

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

Official Conduct

No  Reference Question Response Comments Respondent

1 s3.57  F&G Reg 11 Did the local government invite 
tenders on all occasions (before 
entering into contracts for the supply 
of goods or services) where the 
consideration under the contract was, 
or was expected to be, worth more 
than the consideration stated in 
Regulation 11(1) of the Local 
Government (Functions & General) 
Regulations (Subject to Functions and 
General Regulation 11(2)).

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

2 F&G Reg 12 Did the local government comply with 
F&G Reg 12 when deciding to enter 
into multiple contracts rather than 
inviting tenders for a single contract.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

3 F&G Reg 14(1) & 
(3)

Did the local government invite 
tenders via Statewide public notice.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

4 F&G Reg 14 & 15 Did the local government's advertising 
and tender documentation comply with 
F&G Regs 14, 15 & 16.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

Tenders for Providing Goods and Services
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No  Reference Question Response Comments Respondent

5 F&G Reg 14(5) If the local government sought to vary 
the information supplied to tenderers, 
was every reasonable step taken to 
give each person who sought copies of 
the tender documents or each 
acceptable tenderer, notice of the 
variation.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

6 F&G Reg 16 Did the local government's procedure 
for receiving and opening tenders 
comply with the requirements of F&G 
Reg 16.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

7 F&G Reg 18(1) Did the local government reject the 
tenders that were not submitted at the 
place, and within the time specified in 
the invitation to tender.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

8 F&G Reg 18 (4) In relation to the tenders that were not 
rejected, did the local government 
assess which tender to accept and 
which tender was most advantageous 
to the local government to accept, by 
means of written evaluation criteria.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

9 F&G Reg 17 Did the information recorded in the 
local government's tender register 
comply with the requirements of F&G 
Reg 17.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

10 F&G Reg 19 Was each tenderer sent written notice 
advising particulars of the successful 
tender or advising that no tender was 
accepted.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton

11 F&G Reg 21 & 22 Did the local governments's advertising 
and expression of interest 
documentation comply with the 
requirements of F&G Regs 21 and 22.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

12 F&G Reg 23(1) Did the local government reject the 
expressions of interest that were not 
submitted at the place and within the 
time specified in the notice.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

13 F&G Reg 23(4) After the local government considered 
expressions of interest, did the CEO list 
each person considered capable of 
satisfactorily supplying goods or 
services. 

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

14 F&G Reg 24 Was each person who submitted an 
expression of interest, given a notice in 
writing in accordance with Functions & 
General Regulation 24.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

15 F&G Reg 24AD(2) Did the local government invite 
applicants for a panel of pre-qualified 
suppliers via Statewide public notice.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

16 F&G Reg 24AD(4) 
& 24AE

Did the local government's advertising 
and panel documentation comply with 
F&G Regs 24AD(4) & 24AE.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton
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No  Reference Question Response Comments Respondent

17 F&G Reg 24AF Did the local government's procedure 
for receiving and opening applications 
to join a panel of pre-qualified 
suppliers comply with the requirements 
of F&G Reg 16 as if the reference in 
that regulation to a tender were a 
reference to a panel application. 

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

18 F&G Reg 24AD(6) If the local government to sought to 
vary the information supplied to the 
panel, was every reasonable step 
taken to give each person who sought 
detailed information about the 
proposed panel or each person who 
submitted an application, notice of the 
variation. 

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

19 F&G Reg 24AH(1) Did the local government reject the 
applications to join a panel of pre-
qualified suppliers that were not 
submitted at the place, and within the 
time specified in the invitation for 
applications.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

20 F&G Reg 24AH(3) In relation to the applications that 
were not rejected, did the local 
government assess which application
(s) to accept and which application(s) 
were most advantageous to the local 
government to accept, by means of 
written evaluation criteria. 

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

21 F&G Reg 24AG Did the information recorded in the 
local government's tender register 
about panels of pre-qualified suppliers, 
comply with the requirements of F&G 
Reg 24AG. 

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

22 F&G Reg 24AI Did the local government send each 
person who submitted an application, 
written notice advising if the person's 
application was accepted and they are 
to be part of a panel of pre-qualified 
suppliers, or, that the application was 
not accepted.

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

23 F&G Reg 24E Where the local government gave a 
regional price preference in relation to 
a tender process, did the local 
government comply with the 
requirements of F&G Reg 24E in 
relation to the preparation of a regional 
price preference policy (only if a policy 
had not been previously adopted by 
Council).

N/A Samantha 
Appleton

24 F&G Reg 24F Did the local government comply with 
the requirements of F&G Reg 24F in 
relation to an adopted regional price 
preference policy.

No Samantha 
Appleton

25 F&G Reg 11A Does the local government have a 
current purchasing policy in relation to 
contracts for other persons to supply 
goods or services where the 
consideration under the contract is, or 
is expected to be, $150,000 or less.

Yes Samantha 
Appleton
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I certify this Compliance Audit return has been adopted by Council at its meeting on

Signed Mayor / President, Morawa Signed CEO, Morawa
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6. Closure of Meeting

The President closed the meeting at 5.32pm.

…………………….……………Presiding Person
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